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Dear Stakeholder,
2016 was a very positive year for which we are extremely pleased!

First of all, let me remind you of the important recognition which was bestowed upon us 
in the November issue of the Financial Reporting Awards “Oscar di Bilancio” for our 2015 
Annual Report. The report was considered worthy of this prestigious reward, which took 
into consideration the most meaningful medium sized companies in the Italian landscape. 
The report in itself does not only have the objective of detailing the economic / capital data 
and information but more importantly, to outline the values which characterize us.

Transparency is one such value, which is an integral part of us and is highly recognizable. 
We are convinced that in order to construct  value, we need to have the confidence and 
trust of our partners and all stakeholders with complete detailed information pertaining 
to our business complex. We like to talk not only about who we are but also about our 
strategy, programs and projects for the years to come.

In regards to market positioning, GTS operates in the field of rail and intermodal transport 
on a triple front:

1. With its Door2Door services  deliveries are made in Italy, UK, Belgium, Holland, France, 
Greece and Turkey. There were a total of 82,591 shipments.

2. As a Multimodal Transport Operator (MTO) offering slots on its domestic and international 
rail network of more than 4000 trains per year with the Terminal2Terminal formula.

3. As a railway company (GTS RAIL) it offers traction trains for trains across the national 
territory.

The Italian rail market continues to see us being protagonists with a share of 8% 
when considering private rail companies. The overall volume of the entire system 
increased from 45 to 46 Million Km. Not at all much, if you were to consider the 
increasing demand for green transport and alternative to the incumbent. This 
weakness is determined by the lack of locomotives in the market. In this sense, the 
decision to continuously invest in the purchase of rolling stock is a winning one.

Sales grew by 6,5 % to € 85 million. The Group’s Ebidta  rose to 10 Million euros 
while Ebit amounted to 7 million euros with an increase of 52%. These results 
reward bold investment and strategic choices in the world of rail and intermodal 
transport. The volumes transported by GTS RAIL grew by the 21%, reaching 1.45 
million km of routes.

The strengthening of the network continued this year with new connections.
From an asset point of view, our growth and consolidation path continues.
We have completed the construction of the new OMR (Rotary Maintenance Workshop) 
at our Lamasinata terminal. This new state-of-the-art facility allows us to carry out 
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preventi ve and correcti ve maintenance for our fl eet of locomoti ves and wagons. It 
does not only have a specifi c weight from the point of view of effi  ciency and economy 
but it is strategically important to make the company independent in regards to  a 
nerve racking  theme such as maintenance. The OMR will not only serve us for  our self-
producti on but will also be an “open to the public” facility, whereby we will host other 
companies’ rolling stock as well, which will be an autonomous business acti vity. The 
workshop will, among other things, be equipped with a lathe, propedeuti c system for 
re-fi ling of wagon wheels and locomoti ves (locomoti ves from Italy are oft en brought 
abroad for this acti vity due to the lack of specialized equipment and locati ons).

Felicia, Apulia and Leonida were handed over; in other words the latest three 
locomoti ves which brings our fl eet to a total of ten units. Expectant with great 
anti cipati on, they immediately entered in the full fl ow of all the group’s exercise in 
order to meet the group’s tracti on needs. This, on the one hand, has confi rmed the 
fairness of the investment, but the sudden saturati on of producti on capacity, which 
requires us to plan further purchases which management already have in the pipeline.
The banking system conti nues to be an ally to new GTS initi ati ves by always being alert.

The GTS Academy has become reality. The railroad world is characterized by 
highly specialized fi gures who thanks to liberalizati on are becoming more and 
more demanded by the market. In Italy there are only fi ve accredited centers at 
the Nati onal Railway Safety Agency. Our high performance formati on educati on 
school aims to fi t into this context with great potenti al in order to off er courses and 
to train staff  for our own producti vity as well as for other third parti es.

The concept of sustainability is now integral to the daily work of the GTS 
‘community. Intermodal transport by defi niti on is a friend of the environment and 
helps to overcome the negati ve externaliti es. But this is not enough for us. We want 
to be sustainable on the whole chain and for this reason we ask our suppliers to  
complain with our style of work. Sustainability is not just a marketi ng strategy, but 
it is our only method of thinking, to ensure the success and survival of the business.

Innovati on has become a real daily mantra for us. We invested in a powerful 
informati on technology department to improve our internal effi  ciency and 
producti vity, but above all in order to provide our customers with more tailor made 
services. Another project that we are working hard on is our interchange platf orm 
with GTSGo customers and vendors that will clear the existi ng supply and demand 
informati on asymmetry.

Growth remains for us the only way to go forward. The intermodal and rail transport 
market has incredible growth margins and it is our intenti on to grab them with 
both hands. Cost structure allows us to become more and more competi ti ve as the 
volumes transported increases, as well as realizing more trains allows us to provide 
a higher service quality. Growth means a virtuous circle of effi  ciency and profi tability.

The goal for 2017 is a turnover of 100 million!

 Alessio Michele Muciaccia
 Chief Executi ve Offi  cer Chief Executi ve Offi  cer
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Financial 2016 2015 %

Turnover* 85.3 80.1 +6%
Ebitda* 10.1 7.9 +28%
Shareholders’ equity* 20.2  15.6 +29%
Ebit* 7 4.7 +49%
Net results* 4.8 3.1 +55%
Ebit % 8% 6% +40%
Ebitda % 12% 10% +20%
* values expressed in million €

Production 2016 2015 %

Number of Shipments 82,591 69,277 +19%

Train\Km
Italy 1,233,589 1,077,330 +15%
Europe 2,173,463 2,013,504 +8%

TOTAL Train\Km 3,407,052 3,090,834 +10%
Number of Customers served 956  766 +25%
Number of trains 3,547  3,119 +14%

Social 2016 2015 %

Training days  326  272 +20%
Social Related Projects  6  6 -
Number of accidents on the job 2 2 -

Environmental 2016 2015 %

CO2 Saving –kg (100,680,737) (91,342,576) +10%
Noise Pollution -26%
Road accidents -28%
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METHODOLOGICAL INTRODUCTION

The internati onal context in which the corporate reporti ng theme is evolving 
requires companies, who want to be the protagonists of change, the responsibility 
to contribute to the creati on of sustainable value and to communicate how to do so.

The London Stock Exchange’s Guidelines on the ESG Reporti ng1,  the convergence 
document between GRI and IIRC2, the new GRI 2016 standards3 are just some of the 
novelti es that form the framework for presenti ng the “ GTS Group’s 2016 Integrated 
Annual Report  .

The Annual Report conti nues in the “rut” of full integrati on of fi nancial and 
non-fi nancial informati on, providing stakeholders with a more accessible 
communicati on tool.

To improve reporti ng eff ecti veness, GTS Group has decided to invest in web reporti ng 
by improving the informati on quality of its web site content (htt p://www.gtslogisti c.
com/en/csr/ ) on sustainability, focusing on architecture, legibility, functi onality and 
accessibility.

The  2016 GTS Group’s report is presented in an integrated, content-intensive (core) 
version of the Global Reporti ng Initi ati ve (GRI-G4) guidelines, and more aligned, 
in terms of content Process, as provided by the framework of the Internati onal 
Integrated Reporti ng Commission (IIRC) and Account Ability 1000 - Stakeholder 
Engagement 2015 Standard.

The 2016 integrated Annual Report  presents, in comparison to that of 2015, two 
substanti ve improvements that concern, on the one hand, the most eff ecti ve 
representati on of the business model and the value creati on process by defi ning 
specifi c input indicators and correlated output and outcome indicators, on the other 
hand, the precise descripti on of capital (fi nancial, infrastructure, human, social and 
relati onal, natural) which are the real subject of the report’s in-depth analysis.

2016 is also a transiti onal year for the GTS Group that intends to voluntarily align 
itself with the informati on requirements of italian Law “D.lgs 254/16, providing 
informati on on environmental, social, personnel, human rights and the fi ght against 
acti ve and passive corrupti on.

For this reason, in line with the provisions of Art. 4 of the Law, the decision to expand 
the reporti ng scope of the sustainability non-fi nancial informati on report of GTS 
Holding Srl, the two subsidiaries General Transport Service SpA and GTS Rail SpA,  as 
well as the newly formed GTS Servizi Srl.

1 htt p://www.lseg.com/esg
2 htt ps://www.globalreporti ng.org/informati on/news-and-press-center/Pages/Forging-a-path-to-

integrated-reporti ng.aspx
3 htt ps://www.globalreporti ng.org/standards/gri-standards-download-center/
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The fi nal submission, though involving the whole organizati onal structure, is the 
result of the joint work of an internal working group, composed as follows:

Mimmo Cavallo
Chief Commercial Offi  cer

Enza Lassandro
Safety Manager GTS Rail SpA

Teriana Corallo 
Operati ons Manager

Pasquale Todisco
Chief Financial Offi  cer

Giuseppe Desanti s
General Manager

Leonardo Monopoli
Sustainability manager

Head of the Working Group: 
Ciro Armigero, 

Controller 
c.armigero@gtslogisti c.com

Antonio Valenzano
Chief Operati on Offi  cer 

GTS Rail S.p.a.

The CEO of GTS Holding Srl is responsible for the set up of this Sustainability Report 
as for the social and environmental aspects of the GTS Group.
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1. GTS Group
1.1 The history

President

CEO Special delegate
DLgS 81/08

Management

MACRO ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE BY FUNCTIONING AREAS

Safety and Quality Control

ITManagement control

Human Resources

Financial Administration 
and Control Safety ManagerMarketing & SalesOperations

CEOCEOCEOCEOCEO Special delegateSpecial delegateSpecial delegate
DLgS 81/08DLgS 81/08DLgS 81/08

ManagementManagementManagementManagementManagement

MAIN INSTITUTIONAL COMPOSTION OF THE GROUP

BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS

Owners Muciaccia Family

Sole 
Administrator 

GTS HOLDING S.R.L. Alessio Michele Muciaccia

G.T.S. – GENERAL TRANSPORT SERVICE S.P.A. Nicola Muciaccia

GTS RAIL S.P.A. Alessio Michele Muciaccia

General Manager Giuseppe Desantis

SUPERvISORY 
BOARD

GTS HOLDING 
S.R.L.

Sole Auditor Fabio Caputo

Revisory Auditor Andrea Venturelli

G.T.S. – GENERAL 
TRANSPORT 
SERVICE S.P.A.

Board of Statutory Auditors

Beniamino Di Cagno

Fabio Caputo

Vito Montanaro

GTS RAIL S.P.A. Statutory Auditors

Anna Lucia Muserra

Fabio Caputo

Michele Tetro

External Auditory Company PricewaterhouseCoopers S.p.A.

1977 1992 2007 2008 2009 2010

Founded First train from 
Bari to Naples

Obtainment of the railway licence 
on the Italian national network

First international 
train from Bari 
to Manchester

First Trains 
produced by 
GTS Rail



ON DECEMBER 31ST, 2016, THE CORPORATE MARGIN INCLUDES THE FOLLOWING ENTITIES

GROUP 
ENTITIES

REGISTERED
OFFICE

% 
PART.

TOTAL 
ASSETS* DESCRIPTION

Parent Company

GTS HOLDING 
S.R.L.

2,195
The company which holds the shares of
subsidiaries, whose shares are all held 
by the Muciaccia Family

The subsidiaries

Transport and logistics

G.T.S. – GENERAL 
TRANSPORT 
SERVICE S.P.A.

52% 40,278

The Group’s Company that interfaces 
with customers and suppliers, dedicated 
to the organization and optimization of 
intermodal transport.

GTS Logistic UK 
LTD

65% 11 Commercial company established in 2013 
in order to be present in UK market.

G.T.S. Nederland 
B.V.

65% 24
Commercial company established in 2013 
in order to be present in the Netherlands 
market.

Service Companies

G.T.S. Servizi 
S.r.l.

100% 354 Group’s company focused on accounting 
and administration.

Railway Transport

GTS RAIL S.P.A. 52% 15,701 Railway enterprise of the group. Providing 
rail haulage services since 2009.

GTS Rail Sagl 100% 28
Railway enterprise that will provide 
traction and haulage services on the 
Swiss and international territory.

Constructions

Muciaccia 
Costruzioni 
Gruppo GTS S.r.l.

62% 2,089 Real Estate company.

* value expressed in € thousands

2010 2011 2013 2014 2015 2016

Vertical integration 
of GTS rail 
production

Admitted to the Elite 
project of Borsa 
Italiana S.p.A.

GTS Rail Srl becomes 
GTS RAIL S.P.A.

Start Up of the subsidiaries 
GTS Logistic UK Ltd and G.T.S. 
Nederland B.V.

The Italian Ministry of Transport 
and Infrastructures releases 
to GTS Rail S.p.a. the national 
railway licence for passengers 
transport

Financial 
Reporting 
Oscar 
award

First participation in the “Transport 
Logistic” international trade fair in Munich

Obtainment of the Safety Certifi cate 
released by the national agency for 
railway safety

Obtainment of the 
safety certifi cate 
released by the 
National Agency 
for Railway Safety



1.2 Value System 

Group’s growing attention towards the development and 
propagation of common values earned awards and recognition 
from domestic and international stakeholders.

Financial Reporting Award “Oscar di Bilancio”

In 2016 the GTS Group applied for the first time to Financial 
Reporting Awards “Oscar di Bilancio”
Now in its 52nd edition, the event rewards companies and public 
entities that are the most virtuous and attentive in their economic 
and sustainability reports towards their stakeholders. A group of 
jurors along with the partners involved in the scientific committee 
highlights the importance that the event plays in the dissemination 
and promotion of topics related to the evolution of business 
reporting in the private and public sectors. The following categories 
were considered in the assignment of this prestigious award:

• Banking, Financial and Insurance Enterprises
• Companies and Large Enterprises
• Small and Medium Enterprises
• Foundations and non-profit organizations

In such regards, the GTS Group was awarded the first place in the mid 
corporate segment for the following reasons. 
The evolution of the Integrated Reporting on one hand reflects 
the Group’s need to respond and, when possible, to anticipate the 
requests coming from different types of stakeholders, secondly, 
the optimization of communication, reviewing the forms and 
structures of the budgets present (consolidated and sustainability 
report) in order to create a financial and non-financial connection 
of information so as not to burden the reporting processes 
and related functions involved. This award honoured the effort 

The balance sheet is very good and reflects the desire of the company to 
make it evolve from a merely informative tool into an adequate report integrated 
with the synthesis of economic, financial and governance issues and highlights 
the effects and links between all forms of, tangible and intangible values. The 

willingness and desire to communicate with foreign stakeholders also emerges, through the use 
of the English version. The accuracy, clarity, usability and the connection of the information was 
particularly appreciated. Furthermore highlighted was the analysis on governance, organization 
and processes with clear evidence of the improvement plans undertaken, as well 

as the steps taken with subsequent reporting as evidence. The website was 
deemed to be “organized perfectly and well put in place

[12] 1. GTS Group



Safety

Ethics and Integrity Transparency

InnovationSustainability

Cooperation

Respect for Individuals

and commitment of the enti re corporate structure and head 
management, whom, in 2012, introduced a new approach 
to reporti ng by inserti ng the CSR within the business model, 
strengthening values such as transparency and integrity that has 
always characterized the GTS Group.

Elite 

Even though this happened aft er the closing of the period, we 
would like to highlight the obtainment of the Elite Certi fi cate. On 
Wednesday, May 3rd, 2017, the GTS Group achieved the ambiti ous 
goal of obtaining such recogniti on. Specifi cally designed by Borsa 
Italiana (Italian Stock Exchange), ELITE aims to accelerate the growth 
of excellent italian businesses through an innovati ve organizati onal 
and managerial development path aimed at making meritable 
companies even more competi ti ve, more visible and more att racti ve 
to investors. Elite certi fi cati on represents an important award of 
excellence that confi rms the growth and internati onalizati on of 
the Group, which basically translates today to being even more 
competi ti ve on the internati onal market and more visible and 
att racti ve to the stock market and to investors.

ELITE CERTIFICATE 

Luca Peyrano  

CEO & General Manager ELITE 
London Stock Exchange Group 

Issued for GTS Holding 

on Wednesday, 3 May 2017 

1. GTS Group [13]



Best practice in business reporting for the National 
Council of Certified Public Accountants

The “Sustainability and corporate reporting” Commission through the 
National Board of Accountants and Auditors, in June 2016 published a 
document entitled: “Directive 2014/95 / EU on non-financial disclosure 
and diversity in organ administration composition, management and 
control.” The document is the first in the international guidelines on 
the subject of the transposition of the Directive 20014/95, a directive 
which has been recently introduced in Italy by Legislative Decree 
no. 254/16 which has foreseen, since 2017, the obligation for the 
authorities of Public Interest, with more than 500 employees, to bring 
about non-financial and diversity in their financial reporting.
Within the SME section, where the clarification of the information 
it is expected to be reported, also for SMEs, which by law are not 
required but may get a number of benefits in doing so, a descriptive 
section on the optimal best-practice on the Italian level is given, 
among which the GTS Group is highlighted for activism manifested 
in the field of sustainability reporting. The following is an excerpt of 
what the document states: 

The CNDCEC considered that in this case, the non-financial benefits associated 
with the information are essentially essentially attributable to:
•	 improving the image and brand of the company, 
•	 better positioning in the supply chain. 

Regarding the second advantage point the disclosure of sustainability is in particular highly noted, as 
well as good practices undertaken in recent years on the subject, which have allowed the 

GTS Holding to commence commercial relationships with multinational companies, who 
today show great deal of sensitivity to issues of CSR and sustainability reporting



Study Group Research paper on Social Reports 
(GBS)

G.B.S. as an Italian standard setter in the field of social reporting 
for enterprises and public companies that aims to encourage the 
dissemination of corporate social responsibility and its application 
in the national context.

GBS, in the course of 2016, launched a highly innovative project 
aimed to establish international standard guidelines for web 
reporting. The preparation for drafting process of the guidelines 
was the analysis of a panel of companies, which fell into four 
cluster types: multinationals and other large enterprises, small 
and medium-sized enterprises, cooperatives and non-profit 
companies.

In this case, as well the GTS Group was considered best practices 
among SMEs under analysis. The financial and non-financial 
reporting, already considered accurate and comprehensive in its 
content on the consolidated financial statements, received thus 
appreciation in terms of how this information was communicated 
on the web, in the apt sustainability section shown on the websites 
of companies Group.



1.3 Business Model 

The collapse of the financial system and structural economic 
crisis of recent years highlighted the importance to rethink the 
value-creation model of public and private institutions, borrowing 
different principles and behaviours from the past.

Whereas before the response to crisis was the introduction of 
new capital in the economy, dictating new regulations and / or 
reducing costs, today the most important challenge for companies 
is to integrate business model into its strategies thus covering new 
competitive paradigms based on ethics and respect for legality, 
circular economy, as well as the involvement of stakeholders.

GTS Group’s business model has changed over time, originally 
focused on the implementation of competitive strategies based on 
the differentiation of services; it has become increasingly oriented 
towards the creation of a safe, punctual and environmentally 
friendly transport service. The production and distribution of 
added value, has started a virtuous cycle of operating indicators 
measuring input, activity / process, output, different types of 
outcome such as economic, environmental and social which are 
all directly correlated. The search for a full synthesis of sustainable 
business strategy still continues in its essence and which has the 
convergence process as the main focus, with head management 
introducing induction board action activities.
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All of which must be perceived externally as: 

• development of innovative projects that create shared value for 
all stakeholders, maintaining constant and ongoing dialogues 
with them;

• indoor environmental monitoring, where maximum attention is 
paid to all employees;

• safeguarding the environment and future generations

The business model and value creation to which the GTS Group 
refers is all within the IIRC framework where all six capitals: financial, 
infrastructure, human, intellectual, relational and natural represent 
indispensable assets on which and to which it is based and it orients 
the value creation process.
The following table, describes what is required in accordance to the 
IIRC framework, the value creation process which, starting from the 
transformation of the input through the corporate activities, to the 
production of output, and the realization of specific impacts.

Capital (input) Company Activity Output Outcome
Financial

• Liquidity and debt
• Equity

• Working capital
• Bank loans
• Operating cash flow

• Credit worthiness
• Financial leverage
• Reduce capital costs

• Induced locally
• Financial strength for 

banks and business 
partners

Infrastructural
• Locomotives
• Rail wagons
• Containers
• Goods
• Properties

• Investing in 
innovation

• Process 
Improvement

• Ongoing 
maintenance

• Reduce operational 
risk

• Increase value of its 
assets

• Greater production 
efficiency 

• Occupation
• Regional Leadership
• Reduction of CO2 

emissions
• Expansion in the area of 

territory expertise

Physical
• Employees
• Collaborators
• Company Officers

• Job security
• Corporate welfare
• Health and wellness 

in the workplace
• Goals of the United 

Nations

• Competence
• Efficiency
• Reasons
• Generational success 

Step

• Social welfare 
(employees, contractors 
and the local community)

• Growth and skills 
• Maintaining jobs

Intellectual
• Railway license
• Management 

system
• Protocols
• IT

• Research and 
development

• Active collaboration 
with universities 
and research 
centers

• Reduce operational 
risk

• Competitive 
advantage

• Industrial 
partnerships

• Increased rail security
• Efficiency improvement 

of service

Relational
• Clients
• Suppliers 
• Banks
• Universities and 

other institutions

• Complete  
stakeholder 
involvement

• Industrial Relations 
Management

• Reputation in 
the national and 
international level

• Strengthening of 
business partners

• Best Practices in 
the green Transport 
economy

• Competitive 
advantage

• Local socio-economic 
development

• Protecting workers’ 
rights good practices 
and values in the 
“Confindustria” 
community 

Natural
• Waste
• Utilities (energy 

and water)
• Emissions

• Respect for the 
territories and 
biodiversity

• Energy efficiency 
improvement

• Sustainability in 
Transportation

• Reduced operating 
costs

• Reduce operational 
risk

• Reputation

• Reduction of CO2 
emissions

• Reducing road accidents
• Traffic reduction
• Noise reduction



1.4 External environment  
and business risks

The ability to protect and maximize the value of tangible and 
intangible sources that characterize the company’s business model 
is now considered a must for the GTS Group. The GTS Risk Model 
systematically evaluates three categories of risks: the risks of the 
external environment, strategic risks and operational risks. In the 
course of 2016, a decision to evaluate sustainability risks within 
the Group emerged for the first time. The implementation of the 
organizational model ruled by the Italian Law “D.lgs 231/01” at the 
end of 2015 and the control activities carried out by the GTS Rail Spa 
supervision body, has, in fact, allowed the association of risk mitigation 
and of sustainability risks. Furthermore, environmental crimes and 
those generated in breach of regulations on health and safety in the 
workplace under the administrative responsibility of crimes were 
also included, which can lead to administrative sanctions. Aware of 
the importance of the topic and the opportunities arising from the 
said topic, with periodic deadlines, the management seeks to obtain 
from the managerial  bodies of the companies groups an appropriate 
evaluation. This activity is considered as an indispensable condition 
for ensuring reliable and sustainable generation of value in a context 
of controlled risk. For an intermodal freight company, the ability to 
properly manage the risks is, in fact, a prerequisite for establishing a 
relationship of trust with the stakeholders and to ensure sustainable 
profitability over time.

The moderate risk profile, where capital adequacy, liquidity, 
equilibrium and a strong reputation are the cornerstones of 
preserving current and future profit.

The risk management strategy adopted by the Group, albeit not yet 
formalized, focuses on a complete and consistent view of risks.

[18] 1. GTS Group



This encourages transparent and accurate representation of 
the risk of all activities and the strengthening of the control and 
monitoring of culture. This activity includes the assessment of social 
and environmental variables or those for which the externalities 
are more likely to create a negative social and environmental 
impact on the community. In respect to employees risk control, 
a health management and safety system is included as well as 
the commitment to the protect and safeguard  employees and 
customers in and out of work areas. The internal control system and 
of risk management is embodied in the set of rules, procedures and 
organizational structures which allow, through an adequate process 
of identification, measurement and management and monitoring 
of the main risks. The system’s guidelines are defined by the 
newly appointed Board of Directors, who will annually assess the 
adequacy and effectiveness following an approach that is inspired 
by the Risk Appetite Framework.

In 2016, the GTS Group has enhanced the sharing of a risk culture 
through:

• Management and Controlling engagement in the risks 
representation and significant risks identification;

• a training program for employees on risk governance, new 
management systems, new processes and tools for the award 
and monitoring of creditworthiness.

The approval and subsequent adoption of Legislative organizational 
model. 231/01 by the management of GTS RAIL SpA, subject to 
constant supervision by the board of supervisors, accelerated 
the process of adjustment and consistency with regulatory 
developments and organizational changes. This model is an integral 
part of the code of ethics, adopted and circulated by the above 
mentioned railway company.

1. GTS Group [19]



the external environMent risks
Risks which occur outside the sphere of corporate influence. This 
category includes areas relating to macro-economic trends, changes 
in demand, the strategies of competitors, technological innovations, 
the introduction of new regulations and risks related to the country 
context (economic, security, political and environmental).

strateGic risks
Business-specific risks, whose correct management maybe a source 
of competitive advantage or otherwise, reason of failure to meet 
target plans (triennially and annually). Areas related to process and 
service innovation are included in this category, human resources, 
the oil price volatility, organizational processes, financial risks and 
those related to possible M & A operations.

operational risks
Information Technology is included in this type of risk, Business 
Interruption, Legal & Compliance, Health, Safety & Environment 
and Security.

sustainability risks
Risks that fall into this category are found in the following areas: 
environmental, social, business personnel, anti-corruption and 
human rights. GTS Group reserves particular high attention to 
this considering its reputation and the numerous awards and 
increasingly frequent accolades  that the Group has achieved in 
terms of best practices in the field of responsible management and 
reporting of sustainability. 

1.5 Sustainability for GTS
The strong desire to put shared value for all stakeholders at the 
centre of their operation, has led the GTS Group to consider 
sustainability as an instrument to pursue its mission: the eco-
friendly freight transport. The strategy adopted by the Group 
aims to merge the economic dimension with the specific social 
and environmental aspects, and heavily focuses on the following 
points:

Constant and continuous 
dialogue with its stakeholders

Analysis and benchmarking 
update of good practices on 
sustainability carried out by 
other players operating in 
the same sector

Evolution of the information 
in an integrated sustainability 
report
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All of which is performed considering the 17 goals signed by 193 
countries of the United Nations to fight the three main themes 
of world hunger, inequality and environmental damage. The GTS 
Group, although aware of the importance of each of these goals, is 
willing to contribute on at least 8 of these:

3
    

4   5   8    
ensuring a healthy 
lifestyle, promoting 
the welfare of all 
and, in particular, 
of its employees 
and, therefore, their 
children

ensuring continuos 
education and 
equitable learning 
opportunities and 
quality

promoting gender 
equality and other 
levels of diversity 
(age, culture, 
education)

promoting a lasting and 
sustainable economic 
growth, job creation and 
proper work for all

9   11 12 13 
encouraging 
innovation and 
promoting a 
sustainable 
industrialization

helping to make 
cities and inclusive 
human settlements, 
safe and sustainable

ensuring 
sustainable 
consumption and 
production patterns

adopting urgent 
measures to combat 
climate change and its 
consequences
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1.6 Governance 

The corporate governance system of the GTS Group plays a key 
role in the definition and implementation of business model 
based on creating sustainable long-term values. Thanks to ethical 
management, transparency and responsibility for its own business, 
the Corporate Governance seeks to contribute to the creation of 
values for all stakeholders.

All the companies in the GTS Group, adopt a system of administration 
and traditional control: this allows, through the provision of some 
heads of the group, an appropriate comparison between the 
management and shareholders in relation to key elements of 
governance, such as the appointment and dismissal of directors, the 
appointment of members of the Board of Auditors, the appointment 
of statutory auditors of an auditing company, establishing their 
fees. They also included the approval of the budget, distribution 
of profits, the resolutions relating to remuneration policies and 
practices and incentives provided by law.

During the month of December 2016, GTS Holding’s Srl General 
Meeting , which seeks continuous improvement, intended to start a 
process aimed at voluntary accession to the Corporate Governance 
Code of the Italian Stock Exchange. This document identifies the 
criteria applications and behaviours recommended to all Italian 
companies with shares listed in the stock markets.
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auditors
Are responsible for supervising the observance of the laws and the 
statutes, as well as  the principles of proper management in the 
performance of corporate activities; the financial reporting process 
as well as the organizational structure, internal control system 
and the accounting system of the Company; on statutory audit of 
annual accounts and consolidated accounts, and the independence 
of the auditing company accounts and, finally, the procedures for 
effective implementation of sound corporate governance rules.

auditinG FirM
Specialized registered company in the appropriate register, 
appointed by the Assembly on proposal of the Board of Auditors, 
required to express their professional opinion on the financial 
statements approved by each subsidiary as well as the consolidated 
financial statements for the holding company of the group.

shareholders’ MeetinG
Also authorized to resolve the following: the appointment and 
removal of members of the Board of Directors and Statutory 
Auditors and their fees and any liability claims; approval of financial 
statements and allocation of profits; to the modification of the 
Company’s statute.

1.7 Reporting Process

In an effort to integrate in a single harmonic system the financial 
report into the sustainability report, the Shareholders’ Meeting 
adopted the first integrated report referring to the year ended 
December 31st 2015.

In addition, this year as well head management decided to 
aim its focus on the establishment of a working group of 
interdisciplinary skills which include the following 
fields: audit, management control, marketing, 
energy, security in the workplace, IT.

The integrated thinking is based, in fact, 
on the symbiosis of different perspectives 
which attempt to provide an interpretative 
key, and  thus in this case a  communicative 
one, common to the representation of a 
phenomenon.

The prestigious recognition obtained in 
the 2016 edition of the Balance Sheet Oscars 
has not slowed down the relentless process of 
improving the reporting system, which at the moment 
is composed of four different types:

FINANCIAL 
REPORT

SOCIAL AND 
ENVIRONMETAL 

REPORT

INTELLECTUAL 
REPORT

GOVERNANCE 
REPORT
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MATERIALITY
COMPARABILITY 

OF ESG DATA
RELIABILITY 

OF REPORTED 
INFORMATION 

ADHERENCE TO 
STANDARDS AND 

REGULATIONS

Additi onally what should be menti oned is the dual challenge that 
the GTS Group intends to pursue that on one hand is expressed 
in the embodiment of a customized web-reporti ng system which 
is easily accessible by the user, and on the other hand, which is 
in full compliance with their obligati ons under Legislati ve Decree 
no. 254/16 regarding the subject of non-fi nancial informati on and 
diversity.

2016, in this sense represents  a year in which the GTS group tried 
to converge the GRI standards and the IIRC framework, in light 
of what recently emerged from the  reading of the document 
“Forging a path to integrated reporti ng” published in ‘October 
2016 by the GRI.

The guidelines, published in February 2017 by the working group 
of the London Stock Exchange on ESG reporti ng fi nally represent, a 
fundamental reference around which the GTS Group has sought to 
revise its reporti ng process and the report in questi on.

The eight prioriti es set out by the LSE are targets that the GTS 
Group has had in its sight in recent years, they certainly represent 
factors, which need to be obtained. The references, in parti cular 
are as follows. 



1.8 Non-financial disclosure: 
2014/95/UE

“Barnier directive” transposed in Italy with the D.lgs n.254 of 
30th december 2016, set up prescriptions for the mandatory 
communication, starting from 2017, of non-financial information 
for “large size” enterprises. For “large size” enterprises are meant 
public interest entities (listed companies, financial institutions, etc) 
or private companies with more than five employees that have at 
least one these parameters: 20 millions in total assets or 40 millions 
total turnover in the last financial year.

The will of the legislator to pay special attention to the need 
to provide transparency is clear and evident as well as to the 
consulted non-financial information with particular reference to 
environmental and social issues. The categories of companies 
which meet the for mentioned requirements, are obliged to provide 
adequate information about social and environmental issues such 
as enhancing the transparency of its operations, the performance 
of its assets and any impacts, benefits and stakeholders protection.

Obviously, this Directive does not immediately affect large 
enterprises and SMEs which have voluntarily decided to adhere 
to the decree, pursuant to art. 7 of the decree, it is noteworthy 
to report that the GTS Group, has already decided as of this year 
to concretely approach information obligations required in their 
reporting activities.

The GRI-G4 correlation table in addition to reporting the information 
required by standard setter, is enriched with another section within 
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which it tries to align such information to the provisions of Article 
content. 3 of Legislative Decree no. 254/16 which contains, as 
specified in the table below, information defined by the following 
levels: issues, spheres, information.
 

TOPICS AREAS INFORMATION

Environmental

Business management 
model and organization

Using energy resources and use of water 
resources

Social

Political policies, 
achievements and non-
financial performance 
indicators

Emissions of greenhouse gases 
and emissions of pollutants into the 
atmosphere

Staff Relevant 

Main risks arising from 
business activities, from 
products / services, 
from supply chains and 
subcontracting, if relevant

Environmental and health impacts in the 
medium term and safety associated with 
the risk factors

Human rights

Social aspects concerning personnel 
management, actions to ensure 
gender equality, the implementation of 
international conventions and procedures 
for dialogue with the social partners

Respect for human rights, the measures 
taken to prevent violations, the actions 
taken to prevent discriminatory attitudes 
or actions

The fight against 
bribery and 
corruption

The fight against corruption both active 
and passive, with an indication of the 
instruments adopted
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2. The importance  
of the Stakeholders 
Engagement

2.1 Stakeholders  
and communication tools

The GTS Group has chosen to keep investing resources on 
stakeholders’ engagement, on the one hand focusing on the 
expansion of the instruments of dialogue and communication, and 
on the other hand, increasing efficiency in the feed-back process 
concerning the requests made by the company’s stakeholders. The 
CSR considers the legitimate expectations of the various categories 
of stakeholders in order to integrate them into corporate strategy. 
The different forms of dialogue already launched in previous years, 
have been expanded over the course of 2016 with specific actions 
set to accommodate specific categories of stakeholders. During the 
year under review, the actions already taken during the previous 
financial reports  were reconfirmed:

In addition to customer satisfaction surveys, the moments of periodic 
meeting with the staff, the involvement of the families of employees 
in the course of events on the themes of sustainability, the GTS 
Group has incessantly continued to involve various stakeholders, 
during 2016, including local communities, suppliers, customers, 
shareholders, asking and considering the feedback received on the 
issue of materiality and the content and structure of the report.

The challenge put forward  by the Group, also for 2016, was to 
reconcile the different needs of stakeholders, trying whenever 
possible to ensure a degree of convergence between them.

Defining 
moments of 

listening inside 
and outside 

the corporate 
perimeters

Understanding 
the needs 
expressed

Issue related  
to feedback



As it is known, in fact, the instrument of stakeholder analysis, aims to 
consider in a structured and effective way, through the use of shared 
methodologies at the international level, the various stakeholders 
that an organization must involve in its engagement activities.

Who are the stakeholders of the Gts Group

These are all stakeholders who come into contact with the Group 
during the activities that characterize the business. For this reason it 
is essential to accurately detect the elements capable of significantly 
affecting the business activities in the short and in the long run. A first 
distinction must be made between internal and external perimeters of 
the company. This first lot must then be broken down into three types:

• Type one is certainly due to all those who have economic 
direct type relations with the Group, such as: HR, Shareholders, 
Customers, Suppliers, Financial Institutions, other;

• Type two includes those operators which influence or can be 
influenced by GTS Group’s business, such as local authorities, 
regulatory authorities, local communities;

• Third and by no means the last type circumscribes those people 
who interact with the organization in an indirect way: by category 
and Mass Media Associations.

human resources

In this category, all employees and collaborators are included. 
Personal involvement is considered an essential issue in order to 



quickly achieve the full integration between corporate objectives 
and expectations of employees. Confirmation in this is seen in the 
fact that all employees participate, with reference to their roles and 
tasks, in corporate life by actively contributing to the achievement 
of results and developing individual work culture based on the 
Group’s results. There are several initiatives aimed at involving 
employees through projects dedicated to them and their families.

Main dialogue and consultation initiatives:

• Periodic meetings with the Director and the Chairman of the 
Group

• Regular meetings with the supervisory board, a supervision 
body of management control

• Regular meetings of alignment between different functions

• Corporate intranet and mailing

• Monthly magazine

• Training plans and regular updates

• Surveys.
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clients
The satisfaction of customer expectations, is necessary and 
indispensable within the virtues of the Group’s growth path. 
Expertise and resources have always been invested in the continuous 
improvement of the service offered, with a careful strategy placed 
to customer needs and direct interventions to the strengthening 
of communication that have produced significant gains in terms of 
improved fluid collaboration. We report and showcase all customer 
activities in terms of sustainability and environmental impact using 
both traditional and innovative communication channels. Each 
active invoice issued by the GTS reporting organization, for each 
single transport operation carried out, shows the saving of carbon 
dioxide which is not released into the atmosphere and which 
is obtained by the green transport service. Encouraged by the 
attention received from this cluster of stakeholders, the GTS Group 
intended to regularly enhance this type of information, making 
customers aware of the environmental and social costs saved to 
the planet, as to having opted for intermodal transport instead of 
the traditional road transport.
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To complete the virtuous circle of reporting based on the issue, 
there is this current integrated report and the dedicated integrated 
report published on the Group’s website. Timely intervention is 
very often a strategic lever that turns  transport into a quality 
professional service in the sector in which GTS operates.  For 
this reason, GTS Group has in recent years invested in order 
to develop and use all the tools made possible by technology. 
2016 saw the launch of the GTS CUSTOMER DESK app. In the 
age of smartphones, the Group could not help but consider the 
appropriateness of this solution in order to facilitate real-time 
collaboration with the customers.

The following range of offered tools aimed at facilitating 
communication with the customer complete the cycle:

• 24 hour booking service
• Customer desk and Web portal 

suppliers
The awareness of creating shared value in the long term through 
respect of legality, integrity, fairness, transparency and dignity of 
people have allowed GTS Group to be part of a broader system 
involving a multitude of players, many of whom, are suppliers. A 
strong propensity to create long-term partnerships has always 
existed , thus preferring the high quality of service instead of merely 
looking for companies that apply the most competitive prices.

Thanks to this approach, equitable relationships have been created 
over time: relations that are clear and transparent with all suppliers 
based on mutual trust that allows you to look to the future by 
focusing on long-term investments. A careful and selective process 
of suppliers has also been confirmed for 2016, a qualification 
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based on preliminary analysis of personal data, the availability 
of staff  and resources, verifi cati on of the requirements required 
by law, economic and fi nancial informati on. This mandatory step 
considered, a more thorough qualifi cati on and above all a more 
responsive approach to the four areas identi fi ed in the ten Global 
Compact principles will be implemented in the near future. In 
regards to the suppliers, there were several discussions during 
2016. Hosted meeti ngs were organized with core suppliers at the 
Group’s headquarters in Bari.

regulatory bodies
The companies of the GTS Group are periodically subject to 
verifi cati ons by the relevant companies and supervisory authoriti es. 
With parti cular reference to rail traffi  c, the Nati onal Agency for the 
Safety of Railways provides GTS RAIL SpA  with the provisions and 
requirements related to the subject, observing that the railway 
company maintains high safety standards. During 2016, GTS RAIL 
SpA was subject to constant monitoring, from which there were no 
criti cal issues to report.

Associati ons
In regards to associati ons, GTS Group maintains constant 
relati ons and acti vely parti cipates in formal dialogue with their 
representati ves, directly raising CSR awareness across the regional 
and nati onal level.



2.2 From Surveys to results
The dialogue with stakeholders is an activity that has its roots in 
the history of this group. The first survey was carried out in 2014, 
during the  publication of the first sustainability report, which now 
allows for the accounting of results thanks to stakeholder input.

STAKEHOLDER 
GROUP RELEVANCE ROOM FOR 

IMPROVEMENT ACTION

COLLABORATORS

SOCIAL HEALTH AND 
SAFETY AT WORK OHSAS 18001 certification

CLIENTS
ENVIRONMENTAL

ENVIRONMENTAL 
SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT

ISO 14001 certification

CLIENTS
ENVIRONMENTAL BETTER MONITORING 

OF BUSINESS RISKS
Supervisory Body Law 
Decree no. 231/01

COLLABORATORS

SOCIAL INDOOR CLIMATE Expansion and redesigning 
of the workplace

COLLABORATORS

SOCIAL MERITOCRACY Adoption of an incentive 
system

SUPPLIERS

ENVIRONMENTAL INNOVATION Maintenance Workshop 
rolling stock

  
STAFF / 

REGULATORY 
AUTHORITIES

SOCIAL TRAINING Transport safety courses 

EVERYONE ECONOMIC VALUE CREATION Business model and value 
creation
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2.3 The Materiality Analysis
For the identification of the issues reported in the Integrated Annual 
Report materiality analysis was conducted in conformity with the 
instructions contained in the GRI G4 guidelines issued by the Global 
Reporting Initiative (GRI) and in line with the process provided by 
AA1000SES, Stakeholder engagement Standard 2015.

The breadth and depth of the reporting of the topics reflect the 
results of the analysis of materiality performed according to a 
specific methodology, which is periodically updated.

In order to test and align the goals and strategies with the needs 
and expectations of stakeholders it has a time materiality matrix 
been created to identify and prioritize key issues in order to outline 
their useful summary to guide GTS Group’s actions.

Head management involvement and all business areas in the 
establishment of this analysis has allowed us to outline the 
materiality of the issues, both on the basis of relevance to 
stakeholders that the relevance for GTS Group, but also with respect 
to the strategic objectives.

For a definition of 18 thematic materials, GTS Group started from 
the analysis of the 2015 materiality financial year  and introduced 7 
additional  issues (environmental externalities, supply chain, output 
and outcome indicators, diversity and equal opportunities, anti-
corruption, profit and risk management) as they are considered 
significant because of the impact that they could have on the 
process of value creation in the short to medium term.

From the panel of stakeholders (customers, suppliers, employees, 
regulators, banks and trade associations) a sample of stakeholders 
was selected. The redemption rate was about 85%; compared to 
the  300 positions circulated, the Group obtained 254 responses. 
In this activity, it should be noted that all employees at the 
headquarters were.

The data collection was carried out through the administration of 
a questionnaire sent by email during the period November 2016 - 
February 2017. Part of the questionnaire responses was collected 
during the event on December 2nd, 2016 held at the plant’s 
headquarters where the company’s new maintenance workshop 
for rolling stock was unveiled.

The materiality matrix below defines the positioning of the material 
issues, for areas, cross examining  the different levels of importance 
(compared to 2015) assigned to the same issues, the type of 
stakeholders and from the corporate organizational structure.

The material aspects identified in the analysis refer to the subsidiaries 
GTS General Transport Service SpA and GTS Rail SpA that fall in the 
Group’s scope of consolidation as of 31 December 2016. The aspects 

03

SUPPLY CHAIN

DIVERSITY
AND EQUAL
OPPORTUNITIES

PROFIT

OUTPUT &
OUTCOME

INDICATORS

FIGHT AGAINST
CORRUPTION

ENVIRONMENTAL
EXTERNALITIES

01

02

04

05

RISK
MANAGEMENT

07

06

+7 THEMS
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analyzed obviously have outside impacts and influences where the 
Group operates and the categories of stakeholders identified, and 
are relevant to both the intermodal transport and railway sector.

Topic Relevance 
for 2016 

Relevance 
for 2015 Topic of Report  Relevance 

for 2016
Relevance 
for 2015

A  
Health and work 
safety

L  

Supply Chain 
(required 
environmental 
requisites)

NO

B  Reputation M  
Sustainable rail 
transport 

C  Formation N  Internal Climate

D  Anticorruption NO O  
Remuneration and 
benefit

E  
Environmental 
Externalities NO P  Quality Certifications 

F  Work - life conciliation Q  Profit NO

G  
Product Innovation 
and process

R  Risk Management NO

H  
Diversity and equal 
opportunity NO S  

Indicators of output 
and outcome NO

I  
Research and 
Development 

T  Price

A

D

F

social

LowLo
w

HighRelevance for the stakeholders

H
ig

h
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ev
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The results of the analysis have been linked to the list of issues 
defined by the GRI-G4 guidelines, selecting the themes that best 
represent them. The material aspects are shown in the table below, 
where they have been specified with the aim of reporting and any 
limitations.

GRI ASPECTS IMPACTS PERIMETERS AND REPORTING LIMITS

Economic

Economic performance
G.T.S. - General Transport Service Spa  

e GTS Rail SPA
Indirect Economic Indicators

Environmental

Raw material

G.T.S. - General Transport Service Spa  
and GTS Rail SPA.  

The reporting is not extended to the 
supply chain

Energy

Emissions

Discharges and waste

Compliance

Total

Social

Collaborators

G.T.S. - General Transport Service Spa  
and GTS Rail SPA

Health and job safety 

Training and Education

Diversity and Equal opportunity

Complaints mechanisms

Non-discrimination

Anticorruption

Compliance

Corporate Policy

Service Safety 

Service Quality

Compliance
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3. Company Value
3.1 Financial Capital 
The net profi t for the year 2016 was close to € 5 million; with a 
signifi cant increase of 57% over 2015, GTS Group has doubled the 
net profi t for the last three years.

The operati ng margin before amorti zati on and write-downs 
shows an interesti ng growth trend, which is 54 percentage points 
higher than the comparable value of 2013. The focus on effi  ciency 
and opti mizati on of the service associated with prudent business 
management made for a contracti on in service costs whose 
positi ve eff ects in terms of ebitda are well-evident.

Millions
  Euros

Year 2004 

80.0

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

70.0

60.0

50.0

40.0

30.0

20.0

      Turnover 
              evolution

10.0

2015 20162014 

 72.7   72.7  

 77.8   77.8  

84.6

 72.7  

 71.6  

 70.6   70.6  

 61.3   61.3  

 49.5   49.5  

 42.6   42.6  
 47.6   47.6  

 40.4   40.4  

 35.8  

 24.0   24.0  

 20.8  

CAGR
12.7%

2013
2.1

2014
2.5

2015
3.1

2016
4.8

+6.5%
Turnover increase 
compared to 2015

+25.6%
EBITDA increase 
compared to 2015



FINANCIAL STATEMENT BY ADDED VALUE 2016 % 2015 %

Production value*  85,288    80,097   

Production costs (66,771) (78%) (64,524)   (81%)

Added Value  18,517   22%  15,573   19%

Personnel costs   (8,458) (10%) (7,567)   (9%)

Operating Margin (EBITDA)  10,059   12%  8,006   10%

Amortization and Depreciation (3,048)   (4%) (3,319)   (4%)

Operating Profi t  7,011   8%  4,687   6%

Financial Results (338)   0% (293)   0%

Earnings Before Taxes  6,673   8%  4,394   5%

Taxes (1,895)   3% (1,272)   2%

NET Profi t / (Loss)   4,779   6%  3,122   4%
*: Macro classifi cati on does not take into account the amount of the contributi ons in 
the operati ng account for the purpose of adjusti ng the costs for services.

The increase in turnover is even more appreciable in its qualitati ve 
compositi on as it is generated by the positi ve variati on of 
intermodal freight traffi  c as well as the turnover distributi on across 
all customers.

Earnings 
before taxes

7.9%
of turnover
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Below is the breakdown of sales by type of business carried out:

TYPE OF ACTIVITIES* 2016 2015 Delta

Transportation services  84,178 77,831 8%

Rental of Rail material - 79

Rail Services and Accessories 291 551 -47%

Other revenues 820 635 29%

Total 85,289 80,097 6%
* Values expressed in € thousands.

The analysis of the reclassifi ed consolidated balance sheet for 
liquidity highlights the Group’s strategic choice for investment and 
growth.

BALANCE SHEET. 2016 % 2015 %

CIRCULATING CAPITAL  33,148   40%  30,115   36%

Cash  2,000   2%  3,163   5%

Cash and cash equivalents     2,000   2%  3,163   5%

Deferred Liquidation  31,149   38%  26,952   39%

Receivables from shareholders  -     0%  -     0%

Short-term receivables  29,589   36%  25,860   38%

Short-term investments  -     0%  -     0%

Accrued income and prepayments  1,424   2%  1,007   1%

Inventories  136   0%  86   0%

FIXED ASSETS  49,694   60%  38,633   56%

Intangible assets  496   1%  636   1%

Tangible assets  47,733   58%  36,421   53%

Financial assets  388   0%  375   1%

Medium and long-term receivables  1,076   1%  1,201   2%

Advances Fixed assets  -      -     0%

TOTAL  82,842   100%  68,748   100%
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The increase in cash and cash equivalents at short-term bank 
contractions results in a substantial balance in the payment of 
suppliers. The positive net working capital value ensures the 
coverage of the Group’s short-term exposure.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 2016 % 2015 %

LIABILITIES  62,618   76%  53,149   77%

Current liabilities   30,013   36%  27,191   40%

Short-term debt   28,660   35%  25,920   38%

Accrued income and deferred income  1,353   2%  1,271   2%

Consolidated liabilities   32,605   39%  25,958   38%

Medium & Long terms debts  25,209   30%  18,435   27%

Provisions for risks and charges  3,136   4%  3,296   5%

Severance pay  1,529   2%  1,351   2%
Medium and long term portions of accrued 
expenses and deferred income  2,731   3%  2,877   4%

EQUITY  20,223   24%  15,599   23%

Shared capital  891   1%  891   1%

Reserves  5,549   7%  3,977   6%

Profit (loss) for the year  4,779   6%  3,122   5%

Consolidated Reserve     1,756   2%  1,756   3%

Minority shareholders’ equity  7,250   9%  5,854   9%

TOTAL  82,842   100%  68,748   100%

Net financial position of the Group 

2016 2015 Delta

Cash 2,000 3,163 (1,163)

Short-term Financial Debt (6,209) (4,442) (1,767)

Uncovered and anticipated Banking (325) (510) (185)

Short term loan quotes of ml deferrals  (2,484) (1,534) (951)

Debit for short term leasing (3,399) (2,398) (1,001)

Short-term financial position (4,209) (1,278) (2,931)

Medium and long-term financial debts (25,209) (18,434) (6,765)
Mortgage liabilities  (6,210) (4,727) (1,483)
Long-term debts for leasing (18,999) (13,707) (5,292)
Net long-term financial position (25,209) (18,434) (6,775)
TOTAL financial position (29,418) (19,712) (9,706)
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Main Financial Ratios

The definition of a system of indicators is needed in order to be 
able to express, in a synthetic key, the company’s ability to operate 
properly under different aspects which manifest the activity of 
management.

In this sense, the main economic, financial and asset indicators 
were easily identified.

The determination of the ROE, highlights the degree of remuneration 
of the Group’s equity as a result of the business activity. ROI allows 
you to pay attention to the level of overall profitability of investments 
typically associated with operational activity. In regards to ROS, it is 
possible to analyze the quality of sales through its quantification in 
terms of economic convenience and, therefore, in close connection 
with the pricing policy implemented by the company.

The joint analysis of the growth rate of equity and assets leads 
to the formulation of useful reflections on the growth process as 
quantitative of the organizational and operational aspects of the 
company.

The total number of indicators quantified in the following table 
gives the possibility to appreciate the overall performance level of 
both the financial and the patrimonial economic profiles.

Index 2016 2015

ROE (return on equity) 30.94% 25.02%

ROI (return on investment) 8.46% 6.62%

ROS (return on sales) 8.20% 5.7%

Rate of equity Growth 31.3% 25%

Average collection days 91 gg 102 gg

Average days of payment 87 gg 85 gg

Assets growth rate 16% 10.7%
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The added value of the product and its distribution

Added value, as a synthesis indicator, allows you to appreciate the 
wealth created through business processes and the consequent 
distribution phase between the various parties that have actively 
contributed to the production of this value. Ultimately, it allows 
a significant reference extension perimeter which is created by 
business dynamics. Its quantification, obtained by countering 
the external costs of production, is functional to the analysis of 
the division of wealth generated amongst technical, human and 
financial capital.

2015

2016

RISK CAPITAL 
REMUNERATION 
 27%
 24%

PA
REMUNERATION
 10%i
 8%i

CAPITAL CREDIT 
REMUNERATION 
4%i
 3%i

COMPANY 
REMUNERATION 

 14%i
 16%i

PERSONNEL 
REMUNERATION 

 46%
 48%

The prospectus for determining the distinct added value for reference stakeholders is as follows.
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DATA 2016 2015 Delta

Production value  85,288    80,096   6%

External operating costs (66,813)   (64,438)   4%

Added Value  18,475    15,658   18%

Personnel Remuneration (8,458)   (7,559)   12%

Credit Capital Remuneration (451)   (523)   14%

Public Administration Remuneration (1,894)   (1,272)   49%

Capital Risk Remuneration  5,187    3,741   38%

Company Remuneration (Amortization and provisions) (2,485)   (2,563)   (3%)

* Values expressed in € thousands.

the reference Market
Rail transport confirms itself to be the safest, the most cost-effective 
and the most efficient land transport system, requiring 70% less 
energy than land transport, and making the use of space even more 
efficient.

We can reiterate that there is no functioning economy, without an 
adequate transport and logistics system, and that is why, out of all 
types of transport, the railway continues to play a substantial and 
protagonist role in comparison to road transport and confirms its 
potential for continued development.

Indeed, recent researches have estimated that the current demand 
for intermodal road-rail transport services is well below the 
potential. For example, the freight transport system in Italy has 
always had a deep gap with respect to other European countries, 
mainly due to the limitations and poor infrastructural investments, 
although the latter has more critical aspects than other systems 
(just think of the high costs, high incidence rates and environmental 
repercussions) public and private investment on the one hand and 
supporting policies on the other have favoured the cargo over the 
last six decades.

It is a contradiction if we were to consider the unquestionable 
environmental and economic sustainability of rail freight transport 
together with the positive externalities that affect mobility, fuel 
costs and incidentally in general.

Commencing from the domestic market, the pattern of freight traffic 
in the first half of 2016 confirms, in regards to volumes transported, 
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global growth for all modes, with the rail freight segment registering a 
+ 3.8% growth in respect towards the previous year, as duly evidenced 
by the 2016 Congenital Note, of the ”Confetra Research Center”.
The large potential for growth of the Italian market is thus evident 
in light of the still minor share of rail transport compared to other 
modes of transport; It is estimated that said mode reaches a 
value of 6% against a European value, which on average is 18% (in 
“virtuous” countries such as Austria, those numbers even exceeds 
30% - Eurispes)
In support of this analysis, data published by FerCargo (An 
association of private railway companies operating in the freight 
sector, and which accounts for 45% of the total national rail traffic), 
show that 2016 was a year of strong growth (+ 25%) bringing the 
total growth in the sector to 6% and reiterating that rail transport is 
the most ecological carrier.

Adriatic Coast
Ton/year: 5,049,447
North - South: 2,647,781
South - North: 2,401

Tyrrhenian Coast
Ton/year: 4,286,747
North - South: 2,624,082
South - North: 1,662,665

Bari
Marcianise

Pomezia

Roma

Piacenza
Milano

Bologna

Padova
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For each ton of cargo and every kilometer with a European freight 
train, 81 grams in the atmosphere, whereas this is about three 
ti mes that much by road transport. (Eurispes). In support of the 
growth potenti al of freight transport by rail, alternati vely to road 
transport, it is necessary to consider the potenti al of the fl ow of 
goods along the Tyrrhenian and Adriati c coasts.

Even more suggesti ve, however is the att enti on many countries 
pay to freight rail capaciti es, parti cularly Switzerland, which tends 
to make the transport of heavy goods, move from road to rail, as 
one its main objecti ves of its transport policy. By approving the 
arti cle in regards to the protecti on of the Alps (Arti cle 84 of the 
Federal Consti tuti on), the Swiss people have clearly expressed 
their will to distance themselves as far away as possible from the 
traffi  cking of heavy goods by road through the Alps. Interesti ng, is  
the main connecti on between the countries of origin and those of 

Transalpine freight traffi c
Flow of goods of important relation between source and destination countries (2015)

Other relationship

Scandinavia-Italy

Great Britain / Ireland-Italy

France-Italy

Switzerland-Northern Italy

The Benelux countries-Italy

Germany-Italy

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16
Mio. t

4,64

0,49

1,07

1,91

4,71

11,26

14,64
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desti nati on in the transalpine freight traffi  c where the main fl ow of 
goods through the Alps come from Italy and head towards Germany 
(37.8%), Benelux (29.1% ), The fl ows between Northern Switzerland 
and Italy (12.2%).

It is therefore undoubtable the potenti ality in the sector that sees 
GTS as a leading player on the north-south axis of Europe, which 
accounts for almost 50% of total traffi  c.

It is sti ll interesti ng to note that the volume of domesti c internal 
transport (I-I) by rail in 2015 was 10.15 billion tonnes / km (+0.5 vs 
2014) while Foreign / Italy (F-I) 6.25 billion tons / km (+1.4 vs 2010) 
and Italy-foreign (I-F) 4.1 billion tonnes / km (+0.5 vs 2014).
The total, therefore, shows a total growth freight goods by rail of 
+2.0 billion tonnes / kilometer.

Domesti c, Internati onal Inbound and outbound freight traffi  c by 
billions of tons-km (t-km)

Freight transport by route var. %

2014 2015 2016

I-I -1.9 -0.7 0.5

E-I -3.8 -0.9 1.6

I-E -1.4 1.2 0.5

Total -2.5 -0.3 1.0

Elaborati on of the Confcommercio Studies Offi  ce on Eurostat, Istat, Nati onal Accounts 
for Infrastructure and Transport Source: Eurostat

36%

WEST AXIS                

Axis weight
(% Flows)

NORTH-SOUTH AXIS                  EAST AXIS

47% 17%

The north-south axis is strategic: it is about  50%  of total flows of rail traffic

Source: ISTAT 2013 - the Inter-trade route by rail and tire from Italy with other European countries, obtained as the sum of 
imports and exports in volume.
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On the domestic front, in support of the importance of the 
combined rail freight segment, indicators such as tonnes of freight 
transported, thousands of full weekly trains, trains kme, highlight 
respectful data and constant growth in regards to traditional 
transport.

TRANSPORTED GOODS ON RAIL

RAILWAY COMPANIES -  FERCARGO ASSOCIATIONS
TONNES-KM

TRAIN-KM

 Millions Thousands

 By Mode By Type

 Total Internal Exports Imports  

2015 6,751 1,925 2,012 2,811 16,158 

2016 10,200 3,180 2,620 4,679 20,445 

3,449 1,255 608 1,868 4,287

34% 39% 23% 40% 21%

With the continuous support of the various industry benchmarks, we 
are adamantly convinced that the train has a future as a protagonist 
and represents the most rational and effective response to changing 
modes, thus transferring all long-distance freight transport from 
road to rail.

Rail transport continues to consume a fraction of energy in 
comparison to that of the road, and still has enormous potential for 
improving its efficiency, with the appropriate infrastructure and with 
the basic galleries, in fact, trains will have the possibility in a few years 
to consume the same energy, yet transporting 50 % more goods.

In Italy today, more than 80% of goods travel by road, but important 
sectors such as large-scale distribution of consumer goods continue 
to emerge and invest in intermodal transport that is sensitive to 
emission reductions and the search for alternative models of 
“the all road” in the respect of an increasingly eco-friendly and 
environmentally friendly approach.

Our goal is always and always will be to move hundreds of thousands 
of road transports which are done by road to rail, both in Italy and 
abroad; The development opportunities are enormous, in fact, 
there are over 450,000 loading units that would already be suitable 
for rail transport rather than that on the road.

We strongly believe in the extraordinary potential of railroads by 
effectively contributing to the competitiveness and sustainability 
needed to address the challenges of a globalized marketplace.
Our goal is to continue to move road transport by doubling the 
current intermodal transport market share which has not yet reached 
pre-crisis values is which is estimated  still to be at 87% vs. 2007).

A SOLID ExAMPLE 
ABOvE ALL:  

A CARgO TRAIN  
IS THE EQUIvALENT 

TO 40 TRUCKS

1

40
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A clear goal that we have set ourselves and which is more than 
reachable, and we here at GTS conti nue to pursue team spirit, 
sense of responsibility and passion!

Tonnes Delivered
TYPOLOGY

25,000

20,000

15,000

10,000

5,000

-
2009

Internal Exports Imports

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Country r/e

 
 Italy 43.9% 6.0% 50.1%

  
France

 
60.7% 11.3% 28.0%

  
Netherlands

 
31.8% 2.8% 65.5%

  
Belgium

 
28.7% 6.4% 64.9%

  
UK

 
34.5% 5.3% 60.3%

  
Austria

 
55.7% 44.3% 0%

  
Germany

 
57.1% 21.0% 21.9%

  
EU Average 53.5% 12.64% 33.8%
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3.2 Infrastructural Capital
The locomotives 

In 2016 GTS Rail SpA Company purchased three new type E483 
electric locomotives, manufactured at the Bombardier plant in 
Vado Ligure. They are the latest generation of locomotives that 
meet all the requirements of Italian laws and are equipped with 
the most advanced safety systems including the SCMT (Train Speed 
Control System) which can enable the train to stop in the event of 
anomalies.

Considering the new locomotives GTS Rail SpA can now boast the 
following 10 electric locomotives.

swap bodies / containers
During 2016, GTS General Transport Service SpA, acquired 150 swap 
bodies. This increase in units in addition to those already in possession 
brings the tally to roughly two thousand units. They consists of curtain 
sides and container boxes with different specificities. In addition, 
in order to meet the needs of the clients in our portfolio, each of 
whom have different characteristics, the swap bodies/ containers are 
equipped with different openings (side, rear, top) in order to make 
the loading and unloading procedures of the goods easier.

YEAR TRACTION IDENTIFICATION NAME

2009 Electrical 91 83 2483 051 5 SASHA

2009 Electrical 91 83 2483 052 3 FREEDOM

2009 Electrical 91 83 2483 053 1 INDIPENDENCE

2011 Electrical 91 83 2483 054 9 ELETTRA

2011 Electrical 91 83 2483 055 6 ZOE

2015 Electrical 91 83 2483 056 4 NICOLA

2015 Electrical 91 83 2483 057 2 ALESSANDRO

2016 Electrical 91 83 2483 058 0 FELICIA

2016 Electrical 91 83 2483 059 8 LEONIDA

2016 Electrical 91 83 2483 060 6 APULIA



the Wagons
The Company has 340 railway wagons of which 130 are suitable 
for intermodal transport. The wagon fleet consists of 3 types of 
wagons: 90 ‘and 60’ feet Sggmrss , Multifret, this choice was made 
in order to make use of the potential of Italian and foreign railway 
lines. Intermodal transport is carried out using containers and 
mobile crates positioned on the GTS platform wagons, which have 
the potential to allow simultaneous transport from a minimum of 2 
to a maximum of 4 containers per wagon.

the rolling stock Maintenance Workshop
On December 2nd 2016, the Company inaugurated the rolling 
stock maintenance workshop. The structure, which is the first 
privately owned one in Italy, covers an area of 17,000 square 
meters, 1,300 of which are covered. The workshop is equipped 
with two 800-meter linear tracks connecting it to the main railway 
hub, and has also been equipped with an independent deck and 
column wagon lift system, in addition to a structure equipped with 
mobile scaffolding and inspection pits which allows the entire 
vehicle to be seen. The workshop is intended for 1st and 2nd tier 
maintenance activities on all railway vehicles. The investment 
amounted to approximately 3.5 million euros and took a total of 
ten months.



31,9 
millions  

€
invested in 

locomotives

13,2 
millions  

€
invested in 
containers

9,2
millions  

€
invested in 
rail wagons

UNTIL TODAY
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3.3 Human capital

human resources
The ability to centre the business goals of an enterprise derives 
from the involvement of the people who are part of it. A barycentric 
role in human resource management policies is covered by a 
person belonging to a specific organizational structure. Ethics, 
professionalism and preparation are fundamental variables in 
order to face the daily challenges of the reference markets. In 
the absolute awareness that entrepreneurial activities are based 
on economic principles that obviously can not be avoided, GTS 
Group incessantly, continues, in the research of the best working 
standards to be offered to its employees.
Personnel selection and training can ensure ever-higher 
professional standards.

As of December 31st, 2016, GTS Group is composed of 
152employees.

60% of the new recruits are in the form of railway technical 
personnel, while the remaining 40% is administrative staff.

Great care 
and particular 
attention is paid 

in the work environment, a 
place that has always had 
the responsibility 
of transferring 

business values.

HR AS OF 31.12.15
135

EMPLOYMENTS
29

RESIGNATIONS
(12)

HR AS OF 31.12.16
152
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The increase in the total staff was determined by the increase in 
sales volumes in a residual manner, from the need to equip the 
Group with qualified professionals, all of whom engage in different 
specific tasks.

Composition Men Women Total

Executives 2 – 2

Managers 4 5 9

Office Workers 31 19 50

Train drivers and rail operators 65 – 65

Drivers 14 1 15

Laborers 9 – 9

Active internships – 2 2

Total 125 27 152

2016 2015 Delta

HR 152 135 17

Hours of Ordinary work* 229 276 (47)

Hours of Overtime work 6.1% 4.6% 1.5%

* Values expressed in thousands.

HR per age group Men Women Total

Up to 25 years 10 1 11

From 26 to 30 years 23 3 26

From 31 to 40 years 43 10 53

From 41 to 50 years 31 9 40

Over 51 18 4 22

Total 125 27 152

39%
of administration 
employees follows 
gender policies
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Temporary contracts Men Women Total

Drivers 1 – 1

Train drivers and rail operators 16 – 16

Laborers 5 5 10

Total 22 5 27

Interns – 2 2

Permanent contracts 103 20 123

Seniority service Men Women Total

Up to 2 years* 53 11 64

From 3 to 5 years 21 4 25

From 6 to 10 years 45 7 52

From 11to 15 years 4 2 6

Over 15 3 2 5

Total 126 26 152

* including trainee.

Formation
In 2016, GTS Group continued to focus on the recruitment 
component as a strategic growth lever. Complementing this line, 
training and formation has always played a central role in this 
context. The multiple training initiatives differentiated in relation to 
the different needs but especially in relation to the distinct “critical 
know-how” that the company does not intend to renounce. 

Adequate training action inevitably leads to virtuous growth which 
in line with the Group; Which is to ensure respectful formation 
not only of the binding norms, but also of good practice on a 
volunteer plan.

Developing culture on the themes of corporate organizational 
models as a distinguishing factor in terms of professionalism and 
quality of service. 

In this case reference is made to the implementation of the 
organizational model ex Legislative Decree 231/01. 

100%
of interships started 
in 2016 turned into 
“job contacts”
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As already stated, in November 2015, the GTS Group offi  cially 
signed a three-year agreement with the Taranto Insti tute for 
Sustainable Mobility. This partnership aims to enrich the training 
courses promoted by the Insti tute through the sharing of study 
programs as well as the commitment to identi fy within the Group 
experts to be used as teachers. The fi rst semester started in 2016 
and had the acti ve parti cipati on of the Group’s management by 
providing over 50 hours of teaching at the Insti tute. In accordance 
with the signed protocol, during 2017, best students of the ITS will 
be hosted at the Group’s Headquarter for internship acti viti es. With 
this initi ati ve, GTS intended to create perfect synergies between 
vocati onal training insti tuti ons and the job world. The aim is to 
create a learning by doing platf orm where junior professionals can 
develop their logisti cs skills and experience. 

The main competencies that ITS will develop will be the following:

Numerous training acti viti es focused in parti cular on the generati on 
of know-how for GTS RAIL SpA company by now confi rm the presence 
within the whole group of a consolidated training structure. In the 
rail sector, training in parti cular takes on decisive relevance in the 
light of ongoing regulatory updates.

Planning, organizing and 
monitoring intermodal 

services, related operating 
and technological systems 

for the carriage of the goods 
and people transport

Operate within the logistics 
chain managing assets and 

resources in order to ensure 
complete effi ciency of the 

goods and people transport

Organize, control and 
manage information and / 
or document fl ows related 

to the goods and people 
transport

ISTITUTO TECNICO SUPERIORE 
per la LOGISTICA 

 INFOMOBILITÀ - INFRASTRUTTURE LOGISTICHE - TRASPORTI 
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In GTS, the eductional macrostructure is composed by:

RESPONSIBLE FOR TRAININg: has the task of scheduling training activities and coordinating 
the activities of the teaching staff

APPROvED INSTRUCTORS (TEACHINg STAFF): professionalized personnel in accordance 
with  ANSF (National Agency for Railway Safety) regulations, responsible for training and 
monitoring the performance of staff engaged in tasks related to railway safety

DANgEROUS gOODS TRANSPORT CONSULTANT, possessors of a certificate of professional 
training issued by the Ministry of Infrastructure and Transport

Course type Course
Numb.

Numb.Of 
days

Numb.Of 
formation hours

Courses for acquisition of railway skills / 
qualifications 19 229 1.832

Vocational training courses 24 53 424

Professional Update Courses 4 28 224

Total 47 310 2.480

In line with the strategy undertaken in November 2015, GTS Group, 
following the audit received in September 2016, completed the 
final preparatory phase in order to obtain the Elite certificate from 
Borsa Italiana SpA (Italian Stock Exchange).

In this perspective, the strengthening of the process of cultural 
and organizational growth of its management has represented 
for the Group an indispensable element in reducing the distance 
with the big investors and, above all, in anticipating a concrete 
listing hypothesis of GTS Holding. In fact, it should be noted that 
management has actively participated in the workshops and 
workshops organized at Borsa Italiana SpA in Milan. The training 
program was articulated in appointments distributed over the 
year for a total of 128 hours during which topics of strategic, 
organizational and control importance were dealt with. Eight days 
organized in four modules coordinated by the Academy of Borsa 
Italiana and the University Of Bocconi, articulated as such:

• Module i: growth and internationalization 

• Module ii: corporate culture and governance in the service of 
growth

• Module iii: the Impact of Growth on the Role of Administrative 
Manager and Reporting Systems

• Module iv: strategic Business Communication and Financial 
Resources
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The work involved the various management fi gures directly involved 
in the project, in relati on to the specifi citi es of the topics covered.

At the end of this training period, GTS Group applied all the 
suggesti ons and guidelines that were acquired during the GET READY 
phase. With the requirements compliance of the Elite program 
verifi ed,  GTS Group immediately acti vated the check-up procedures 
aimed at verifying compliance of the corporate structure inline 
with the guidelines defi ned by Borsa Italiana SpA. On September 
21st, 2016, the headquarters in Bari hosted the Elite team, working 
with professionals from leading internati onal consulti ng fi rms. The 
enti re day was devoted to business understanding, verifi cati on of 
management control systems, and discussion of growth forecasts. 
GTS Group will receive the certi fi cati on in questi on during its fi rst 
useful session, scheduled for the fi rst quarter of 2017.

128hours
of formation and 
training c/o Borsa 
Italiana SpA

useful session, scheduled for the fi rst quarter of 2017.
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health & safety

Always strongly geared towards ensuring adequate security 
standards, GTS Group is constantly engaged in researching and 
adopting, through organizational and management measures, 
continuous alignment with recognized international standards.

In 2015, GTS Group had already started this course, receiving the 
OHSAS 18001 quality certification, limited to GTS RAIL SpA. From 
the date of its acquisition, the audits were followed by semi-
annual surveys by independent external professionals monitoring 
the maintenance of such standards. To date, there are no critical 
elements formalized by such investigative activities. In the light of 
the constant and continuous improvement, in 2016, this certification 
was also obtained by GTS General Transport Service SpA.

This investment, strongly wanted by the Corporate owners, attests 
the voluntary application throughout the organization of a system 
that ensures adequate control over the safety and health of 
laborers, in addition to compliance with binding rules.

It is the management system with which the company intends to 
demonstrate the ability to identify and eliminate or reduce the risks 
associated with business activities for health and safety at work of all 

employees. We believe that with the Health and Safety Management System we are able to 
develop our policy and set goals that take into account the legal requirements 

and information regarding the risks of Health and Safety at the workplace. The 
defining international standard is the OHSAS 18001 reference.
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This aspect has been confirmed in the three-year 2015-2017 
commitment structure (security framework) where the extension 
of the system had been planned for the entire Group. The approval 
process has accelerated following the analysis of the materiality 
conducted over the previous years. As already mentioned in the 
section above, this target has also been reached.

The number of accidents at the work confirms what was just 
illustrated

Accidents at work 2016 2015

Total 2 2

Sick days for recovery 38 22

Health and safety at workplaces is synonymous with psycho-
physical well-being in GTS. During 2016, GTS’s fitness center hosted 
two courses: driven by the enthusiasm of the first edition, for the 
second consecutive year, the Ju-Jitsu course was renewed for a total 
of 90 hours. At the request of GTS contributors, a cross-fit course 
was activated for a total of 150 hours. Both were held by competent 
and qualified instructors.

Cross fit: “It’s promoted both as a philosophy of 
physical exercise, but also as a competitive fitness 
sport; CrossFit workouts include high intensity 
and interval workouts, Olympic Weightlifting, 
Pliometrics, Powerlifting, Gymnastics, kettlebell 

lifting, rhythmic gymnastics, strongman and other exercises “

Jujitzu: “Jūjutsu is a personal defense art that 
bases its principles on the roots of the original 
Japanese Hey yo shin kore do, or “soft defeats 
hard “

Started in 2014, the success of the initiative was confirmed, in 2016 
the project called G.TiSente was renewed. This health promotion 
service is framed in the wider definition of the WHO ( World Health 
Organization) which provides services to prevent discomfort and 
deviance, education to the management of its mental equilibrium in 
its own individuality. With regard to the accounting year, the project 
of 100 hours was conducted by an external professional appointed 
by the company, in days and times established to facilitate the 
internal dynamics of the Group.
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Quality and well-being at the Workplace

Although closely related to the informati on provided in the theme 
of safety and health, att enti on and care are given to GTS work 
environments.

The headquarters of Bari extends over 2600 square meters. Of 
these, 300 sqm two classrooms dedicated to the Academy project 
were inaugurated in 2016, of which extensive informati on in the 
secti on on social and relati onal capital was given. Newton and 
Galileo began hosti ng, as early as the beginning of 2017, the 
students of the new project, as well as the newly-trained railway 
workers or for periodic training. The classrooms are equipped 
with PCs and multi media tools that make the courses parti cularly 
interacti ve. A relaxati on area, and new offi  ces for the informati on 
technology help desk, complete the descripti on of the new facility.

3.4 Social and Relational Capital

our customers
The customer, like the employee, represents the primary stakeholder 
of GTS Group. For this reason, important resources to quickly intercept 
expectati ons is also dedicated to them as well as loyalty to the service, 
and consolidati on of the relati onship over ti me. Trust, dialogue and 
transparency are the ingredients behind the relati onships that GTS 
Group maintains on a daily basis with over 900 acti ve customers.

2016 2015 Delta %

Train km’s covered 3,407 3,091 10.2%

€ italian customers* 45,6 36,7 24.2%

€ european customers* 35,7 38,5 (7.3%)

€ non CEE customers* 4,3 4,3 -

Number of customers 956 766 24.8%

Orders 82,591 69,277 19.2%

* Values expressed in millions.
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The data represent the evoluti on of a customer portf olio that 
recorded a signifi cant increase at a historical point in which 
much of the trend data confi rms the numbers of the previous 
reports or trend reversals. The surveys launched together with 
the rati ng indexes from primary customers att est to the quality of 
the transport services carried out to date: the eff orts made, have 
rendered it possible to operate indiscriminately in diff erent product 
sectors, trying to ensure all the same quality standards of service.

Below are the diff erent categories of merchandise served and the 
percentage change compared to the previous year.

2015 2016

Logistics

4PL 5.8%

65.9%

5.9%

67.6%Forwarders 56.6% 57.9%

T2T 3.5% 3.8%

Industry

beverage 1.9%

34.1 %

1.8%

32.4%

chemicals 3.4% 3.2%

electr 0.7% 0.6%

food 12.2% 11.2%

others 15.4% 14.5%

waste 0.4% 1.0%

The distributi on by country of the European reference market is 
confi rmed to be substanti ally the same as the previous year. The 
Turkish market, in which GTS has invested recently, is incrementally 
increasing, including a nati ve-speaking commercial fi gure within 
the organizati on.

Italy
470

Netherlands
135

United
Kingdom

135

Belgium
98

France
50

Greece
23

Turkey
21

Map of the most important GTS’ Customers

[61]



Although the number of customers served have increased, the 
same credit assessment policy already adopted in the previous 
year is confirmed. Collaboration with a leading external financial 
corporation, associated with an office that monitors credit 
exposures and internal credit management on a daily basis, has 
guaranteed effective risk management while minimizing exposure 
to the Group.

Below is the number of complaints received by customers during 
the reporting period:

2016 2015

Complaints 14 46

Complaints on Order Counts 0.01% 0.06%

Claims or claims arising out of violations of the right to privacy or 
the dissemination of sensitive data have not been received.

safety in rail transport

Safety of rail transport is an absolute priority of GTS RAIL SpA. The 
subsidiary dedicates maximum attention to these issues. The chief 
operating safety gauge is represented by the Security Management 
System (SGS), configured in accordance with Legislative Decree 
no. 162 of August 10th, 2007, and in compliance with national and 
international safety management standards (Safety Mangement 
System), in order to prevent and reduce the risks associated with 
rail exercise.

The main objective of the Security Management System is to 
eliminate or at least reduce the likelihood of dangerous events 
resulting in harm to people, the environment and property, while 
continuously improving the conditions and quality of work.

The Security Management System allows GTS RAIL SpA to 
demonstrate to all stakeholders, its commitment to security in 
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compliance with applicable laws and regulations: its validity is a 
key requirement for maintaining GTS RAIL SpA Safety Certificate.

In particular, in 2016, the National Railway Safety Agency issued 
to the railway company a renewal of the Safety Certificates (Safety 
Certificate Part A No. IT1120160012 and Safety Certificate Part B 
no. IT1120160023), without any requirement safety.

The absence of prescriptions attests, not only the complete 
compliance of the Management System with the existing national 
and Community legislation, but above all the commitment of 
all management to implement and disseminate the culture of 
security at all levels of the company. The annual commitment 
of the Management, with the aim of ensuring the safety of the 
movement and the rail exercise in accordance with the national 
standards and the addresses provided by the ANF / GI, is formally 
declared in the SGS document “Security Policy”, disclosed at all 
levels of the company and constantly monitored in order to verify 
the results achieved.

the academy project

In collaboration with Athena Srl, as a Training Center recognized by 
the National Railway Safety Agency, GTS RAIL SpA has initiated a 
project for the provision of training services to personnel involved 
in security activities in the sector and in particular for the training 
activities aimed at obtaining and maintaining the qualifications for 
carrying out the duties for the following safety activities:

• train functioning;

• vehicle verification;

• train composition;

• train accompaniment;

• maintenance of vehicles.

The cooperation project between Athena Srl and GTS RAIL SpA 
aims to stimulate and increase the development of railway training 
activities in southern Italy, starting from the Apulia region where 
the key element will be the role of GTS RAIL SpA as the main private 
local railway company. In addition, the partnership between the 
two railway factos will contribute to productivity, and, on the 
other hand, to reduce business costs, resulting in optimization of 
the services offered and the use of human resources.
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the suppliers 

The rigorous process of accreditati on in terms of safety and 
reliability standards enabled GTS Group, even for 2016, to boast an 
eff ecti ve and sustainable supply chain. The adopti on of long-term 
partnerships  is also confi rmed for this report, favouring the high 
quality of service instead of the desperate search for companies 
that apply more competi ti ve prices. The supplier selecti on process 
conti nues based on the following:

Esistenza dei 
requisiti di legalità, 

correttezza e 
trasparenza
Existence 
of legality, 

fairness and 
transparency 
requirements

Respect for laws 
and regulations 

in the 
environmental 
and social fi eld

Compliance with 
quality standards 

that guarantee 
high security 

profi les

Quality 
certifi cations 

related to health, 
safety of human 
resources and 

workplaces [new]

Italy
558

Map of the most important GTS’ 
Suppliers

Netherlands
42

United
Kingdom

28

Belgium
27

France
24

Greece
15
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Category Associati ons

Also for the year under review, GTS Group guaranteed acti ve 
parti cipati on in the major industry and industry associati ons. The 
CEO of the Group, Alessio Michele Muciaccia, was confi rmed for 
presidency for 2016 at Confi ndustria Bari-Bat.

Within the same Associati on, being aware of the importance of 
spreading and raising awareness of corporate social responsibility 
issues, the CSR (Corporate Social Responsibility) forum has also 
been acti vated at the regional level in the province of Bari, where 
the Group’s legal headquarters are located. In this context and 
with the intent as outlined above, the initi ati ve aims to promote 
meeti ngs and confrontati on meeti ngs in order to update and 
inform stakeholders about the main issues related to business 
sustainability. In 2016 GTS parti cipated in 7 meeti ngs devoti ng 21 
hours to it.

GTS also confi rmed for this year the parti cipati on in the Associati on 
of Italian Railway Companies (FERCARGO), which is also a founding 
partner.

Railway and intermodal operators (ASSOFERR)

Since 2016, the railway company of the Group, GTS RAIL SpA, has 
been included among the collecti ve members of the Italian railway 
engineer’s college (CIFI).



the community

GTS Group continues in its ongoing activity of promoting the 
territory and enhancing local communities. It has also invested 
considerable resources this year in training, recreational and 
environmental organizations.

A prestigious award was received from the “Felix Industry” Cultural 
Association : the analysis carried out by the Scientific Committee of 
the aforementioned Association, reviewed the financial statements 
of 2,500 companies with registered offices in Puglia and sales of 
more than 3 Million of euros relative to 2014. With the patronage 
of Confindustria Puglia, of the Politecnico di Bari, of the University 
of Bari, Foggia and Salento, on May 28th, GTS Group was honoured 
as the best transport company based in Puglia.

For the third consecutive year, in the waters opposite the Bari 
seafront, the third edition of the “Sasha” Trophy was held. The tuna 
race drifting (catch & release states that the prey once photographed 
or filmed, is to be released at sea in excellent health) represents 
the most important sporting event of its kind in southern Italy. The 
initiative, which saw the participation of 24 crew from all over Italy, 
took place under the careful assistance of the Harbor Master’s Office 
in Bari and the Marine Authorities. The first-ranked crew in addition to 
winning the Sasha trophy, along with the second and third ranked, will 
automatically qualify for the Italian deep-sea fishing Championship.

The Digital Innovation Observatory set up by Confindustria aims 
to analyze and monitor all the aspects of digital innovation and 
transformation involving Italian companies. The third of the four 
stages was organized in Bari on March 4, 2016. During the event 
GTS Group’s CEO was invited as Speaker.



On April 27th, 2016, Bari hosted the fi rst nati onal forum on 
portuality and logisti cs. The local port authoriti es parti cipated in 
the project, in additi on to the Nati onal Authoriti es, among them 
the current Minister of Transport. Alessio Muciaccia, CEO of GTS 
Group, parti cipated in the workshop. The event was an opportunity 
to make a point on the main measures adopted by the Government 
on port services and logisti cs.

On May 26th, 2016 in Taranto, ITS organized a themati c conference 
on the strategic role of the Higher Educati on Insti tute within the 
Strategic Portuality and Logisti cs plans. Even in this case, GTS 
Group did not miss the chance to give its contributi on. Among 
the speakers, there were local and regional representati ves of 
insti tuti ons, of the University of Bari and of the Politecnico of Bari, 
as well as the representati ves of other companies that make up the 
insti tute’s network of partners.

FOTO CORPORATE SOCIAL 
RESPONSIBILITY

L A  F E S T A  D E I  
B A M B I N I

20 DICEMBRE 2016
DALLE ORE 15.00

DA 0 A 12 ANNI



During the XIVth edition of the National Business Culture Week, on 
November 14th, the Confindustria Bari conference room hosted the 
meeting entitled “Corporate Social Responsibility: with the theme 
being from a Tactical Approach to a Strategic Vision”. The meeting, 
organized by the CSR FORUM of which GTS is part of, provides an 
innovative formula through direct testimonies of entrepreneurs of 
the territory on issues related to corporate social responsibility.

The agreements signed with Bari Politecnico, Aldo Moro University 
of Bari and the University of Salento are also confirmed for 2016. 
These agreements have allowed several students to be able to carry 
out apprenticeship training at the Group’s administrative office.

• A conceptual model of forces driving the introduction of a 
sustainability report in SMEs: evidence from a case study paper 
pubblicato sulla rivista canadese International Business Research

• Sustainability strategy and management control systems in 
family firms. Evidence from a case study paper pubblicato sulla 
rivista svizzera Sustainability

Social responsibility for GTS is also synonymous with the payment 
of taxes and fees of various kinds related to the pursuit of economic 
activities.

FEES AND TAXES 2016 2015 DELTA

Local Authorities 416 255 63%

State 1,280 1,143 12%

* Values expressed in € thousands



3.5 The Environmental Capital

emissions

The impact of human activity on the climate of the earth is no 
longer negligible. The earth is over-heating faster and faster and the 
cause is to be found in carbon dioxide emitted by human activities. 
Many of the climate-influencing parameters are rapidly changing 
and with this scenario, the world’s leading organizations are taking 
note. Without global greenhouse gas emissions, global warming is 
likely to exceed pre-industrial levels of 2°C and could even go up to 
5°C by the end of the century. The impact on the world landscape 
and sea level would be huge and devastating.

Efforts to address climate change and reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions are therefore a priority for the EU. In particular, eu 
leaders have pledged to turn europe into an economy with high 
energy efficiency and low carbon emissions. The EU has also set 
itself the goal of reducing greenhouse gas emissions by 80-95% by 
2050 compared to the levels of 1990. The Countries which have 
adhered to this have signed both the United Nations Framework 
Convention on Climate Change ( UNFCCC) as well as the Kyoto 
Protocol and the Paris Climate Change Agreement.

From November 7th to 18th, 2016, Morocco hosted the XXII edition 
of the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change,  
which was attended by 196 delegations from the Member States. 
The Marrakech Conference established that the adoption of the 
rules for the application of the 2015 Paris Climate Agreement will 
be agreed in 2018 at the COP24 conference (which Poland has 
offered to host) instead of 2020.

The conclusions of the works are briefly summarized here:
• The presentation by several countries (including Canada, 

Germany, Mexico and the United States) of their strategic plan 
in order to achieve the “zero-emission network” in 2050, which 
implies the no longer emission of gas with the greenhouse 
effect in the atmosphere beyond what can be compensated: 

3. Company Value [69]



this instrument will give way to “carbon neutrality” advocated 
by the Paris climate agreement; Without the adoption of it, 
the goal of maintaining global warming well below 2 degrees 
by 2100 would be an impossible mission. Fifteen other states, 
including France, are preparing to develop their plan;

• support a series of announcements and initiatives by non-
governmental governments and structures, including the 
“Vulnerable Climate Forum”, with 48 developing countries 
promising to produce “renewable energy” as quickly as possible;

• the richest countries have committed themselves to financing 
the Adaptation Fund established under the Kyoto Protocol with 
a total of 83 million dollars (50 million of which is granted by 
Germany);

• The heads of the Climate Change Fund established by the 
Copenhagen Conference (COP 2009) have announced the 
approval of the first two National Climate Change Adaptation 
Plans in developing countries (Liberia and Nepal); the fund is 
ready to deliver $ 2.5 billion to the projects.

In this context, redefining the modes of transport of goods takes 
on an increasingly central role and is the main challenge that Italy 
faces. A challenge that has important economic implications, by 
no means at least, and which involves the entire Italian railway 
infrastructure in a decisive way.

GTS Group has always maintained the policy of containment and 
reduction of CO2 emissions in the atmosphere. The Group’s mission 
is to permeate all day-to-day business activities or the need to 
safeguard future generations. The key areas of action for GTS Group 
are to be found in the promotion of sustainable development 
in their areas of influence. The strategy adopted is based on the 
following principles:

As previously mentioned, GTS General Transport Service SpA, after 
the positive experience of GTS Rail SpA, has adhered to the ISO 
14001 certified environmental management 
system (SGA).

Compliance with the requirements 
contained in this standard 
allows the company to build 
a management system based 
on a cyclical and dynamic 
process capable of managing its 
environmental risk through:

GTS Group continues 
to invest in people 
and infrastructure 
in order to make 
stakeholders aware 
of the positive 

-75%
Reduction 
of CO2 in the 
environment 
compared to the 
road transport

Continued research 
on trying to find 
the best energy 

and environmental 
performance by 

minimizing negative 
impacts

Disseminating a 
proper approach 
to environmental 

issues

Optimization of 
the use of energy 
sources and other 

environmental 
resources
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impact of its choice of intermodal transport. Consistent with 
what is stated in the previous report, below are the social and 
environmental costs spared to communiti es as a result of preference 
for intermodal transport.

Such chart allows you to conti nuously and clearly measure the 
tangible contributi on that GTS Group currently provides to the 
community.

Activating a workfl ow, 
decision making and 
horizontal learning

The increase in competitive advantage 
thanks to the growth of its reputation 
as an organization committed to 
sustainability

valorization of interaction 
forms with the environment, 
the territory and the subjects 
involved

kg saved
101,830,586

Accidents
€ 544,279

Pollution
€ 13,308,493

climate change 
€ 4,319,115

noise
€ 772,525

congestion
€ 5,671,033

trees
509,152

Co2 Kgs saved since 1977 till 2016

9 3 9   9 5 8   5 3 7

an equivalent amount 
of Co2 absorbed 
by a forest of over 
46 million trees



energy saving

Electricity consumpti on refers essenti ally to the lighti ng of working 
environments and rail traffi  c. Both values are aff ected: the increase 
in cubic meters for administrati ve offi  ces and the increase in rail 
traffi  c. The consumpti on cost referring to the latt er indicator refers 
to the Kilowatt  rebilling by RFI Rete Ferrovia Italiana, in such as 
those in charge of the infrastructure.

TYPES OF CONSUMPTION 2016 2015

By train* 598 432

Work Environment* 76 58

* Values expressed in thousand.

Fuel consumpti on is largely att ributable to the use of cranes for 
handling mobile crates at the Bari Lamasinata terminal.

Waste Management

The types of waste disposed of are essenti ally att ributable to the 
repair and maintenance of motor vehicles, mobile crates, and 
wooden packaging. GTS Group adheres to the unique environmental 
model in accordance to Decree Law 70 of 1994 and the subsequent 
amendments.

environmental investments
In line with the GTS Group’s environmental policies, the new Rotary 
Maintenance Workshop has been equipped with a “POD $ Empty_
IMPPOD $” photovoltaic system code. A grid-connected type, 
consisti ng of a generator, the infrastructure has a total power of 
22,880 kW and will guarantee an annual output of 32216.19 kWh 
(equivalent to 1408.05 kWh / kW), resulti ng from 104 modules 
occupying one Surface of 170.77 m².
Here are the atmospheric emission values which are expected to be 
saved with such system :

Types of emissions CO2 SO2 NOx Dust

Specifi c emissions in the atmosphere [g / kWh] 474.0 0.373 0.427 0.014

Emissions avoided in one year [kg] 15,270.5 12.02 13.76 0.45

Emissions avoided in 20 years [kg] 280,654.6 220.85 252.83 8.29
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GTS Holding Group Consolidated
Financial Statements 2016



The Consolidated Financial Statements of the GTS Holding Group as at December 31, 2016 are provided 
below. For the consolidated fi nancial statements accompanying the management report, please refer to 
the complete document submitted to the Chamber of Commerce as for Italian Regulations.



BALANCE SHEET
Assets 2016 2015

€
B) Fixed Assets
I - Intangible assets
1) Set-up costs 14,347 25,877
3) Industrial and intellectual property rights 150,305 207,227
6) Pre-payments and other intangible assets in progress 1,650 -
7) Other intangible assets 329,827 403,302

Total intangible assets 496,129 636,407

II- Tangible assets 
1) Land and industrial buildings 5,098,186 5,204,823
2) Machinery and equipment 38,794,315 30,003,946
3) Industrial machinery 44,312 18,045
4) Other tangible assets 284,377 433,630
5) Pre-payments and other intangible assets in progress 3,511,803 760,364

Tangible assets under construction 948,453 113,363
Advances on tangible fi xed assets 2,563,350 647,000
Total tangible assets 47,732,993 36,420,808

III- Financial assets 
1) Investments 81,952 81,952

a) Investments in subsidiaries 77,369 67,369
d-bis) Other Receivables 4,582 14,582

2) Credit
a) Investments in other affi liates Receivables 78,619 64,816
d-bis) Other Receivables 227,892 227,892

Total fi nancial assets 388,463 374,659

Total assets  (B) 48,617,585 37,431,874

C) Current Assets
I- Inventory
4) Products and Goods Inventory 135,592 85,795

Total Inventory 135,592 85,795

II- Receivables
1) Trade Receivables 24,309,481 22,612,341
2) Receivables from subsidiaries 74,023 -
5) Receivables from others controlled by parent companies -

5-bis) Tax Receivables 279,620 941,518
5-ter) Deferred Tax Assets Receivables 557,311 407,442
5-quater) Other receivables 5,444,759 3,096,751

Total current receivables 30,665,192 27,058,052

Iv- Cash and cash equivalents
1) Bank and postal deposits 1,964,209 3,086,636
2) Cheque 26,035 51,357
3) Cash on hand 9,269 25,343

Total cash and cash equivalents 1,999,513 3,163,335

Total current receivables (C) 32,800,298 30,307,182

D) Accrued income and prepayments
Accrued income and prepayments 1,423,751 1,006,534
Accrued income 23,851 37,367
Prepayments 1,399,900 969,167
Total Accrued income and prepayments assets 1,423,751 1,006,534

Total Assets 82,841,633 68,745,590

I -
1)
3)
6)
7)

II-
1)
2)
3)
4)
5)

III-
1)

2)

C)
I-
4)

II-
1)
2)
5)

Iv-
1)
2)
3)

D)

Consolidated Financial Statements as of 31/12/2016
gTS Holding group
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BALANCE SHEET
Liabilities 2016 2015

€
A) Net Equity
I- Share capital 890,530 890,530
IV- Legal reserve 56,082 56,080
VI- Other reserves 5,564,973 3,920,347
VII- Portfolio treasury shares reserve (43,055) -
VIII- Net income (loss) carried forward (29,510) -
IX- Net income (loss) 2,475,567 1,644,629

Consolidation Reserves 1,756,180 1,756,180
Total group’s net equity 10,670,767 8,267,765

minority Interests Reserves 7,249,707 5,853,785
minority Interests Net Result 2,302,987 1,477,523
minority Interests - Total 9,552,694 7,331,308

Total net equity 20,223,461 15,599,073

C) Provisions for contingencies and liabilities
1) Pension liabilities 20,000 200,000
2) Deferred tax provision 1,701,188 1,496,329
3) Financial derivatives 43,055 1,599,355
4) Other provisions 1,371,460 1,599,355

Total provisions for contingencies and liabilities 3,135,703 3,295,684

Employee termination indemnity 1,528,937 1,350,914

D) Payables
4) Due to banks within 12 months 6,209,451 18,434,479

Expiring after 12 months 25,209,059 4,441,395
5) Due to other financial partners 2,083 2,695
6) Prepayments received 5,638 5,926
7) Trade payables 20,173,592 19,483,727
9) Due to not consolidated company 6,051 6,000
12) Tax payables 808,403 549,835
13) Due to social security institutions 292,010 254,156
14) Other debts 1,163,023 1,173,999

Payables to other affiliates 750 750
Payments to other creditors 1,162,273 1,173,249

Total debts 53,869,310 44,352,211

E) Accrued expenses and deferred income
Accrued expenses and deferred income 4,084,223 4,147,709
Accrued expenses 7,474 33,967
Deferred Income 4,076,749 4,113,741

Total Accrued expenses and deferred income 4,084,223 4,147,709

Total liabilities 82,841,633 68,745,590
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INCOME STATEMENT as of 31 December 2016
2016 2015

€
A) value of production
1) Revenues from sales and services 84,657,464 79,304,333
5) Other revenues 11,022,339 6,308,118

a) Operating grants 10,391,351 5,515,443
b) Other revenues 630,987 792,675

Total value of production 95,679,802 85,612,451

B) Costs of production
6) Costs for raw materials (855,687) (1,018,266)
7) Services costs (73,332,960) (65,519,745)
8) Costs for leases and rentals (2,617,546) (3,061,506)
9) Personnel costs (8,458,343) (7,559,065)

a) Wages and salaries (6,307,680) (5,519,077)
b) Social security contributions (1,637,683) (1,592,471)
c) Employee termination (410,486) (359,077)
e) Other costs (102,495) (88,441)

10) Amortization and depreciation (2,650,532) (2,965,006)
a) Intangible amortization (152,024) (324,713)
b) Tangible amortization (2,332,739) (2,238,026)
d) Depreciation of assets in current receivables (165,769) (402,267)

Other provision charges (397,642) (354,376)
Other costs (356,242) (513,660)

TOTAL COSTS OF PRODUCTION (88,668,952) (80,991,625)

DIFFERENCE BETWEEN vALUES AND COSTS  
OF PRODUCTION (A-B)

7,010,850 4,620,826

C) Financial Income and charges 

16) Financial Income and charges 
d) Other financial income 241,124 219,570

Total Final Income and charges 241,124 219,570

17) Interest and financial charges 
Other Interest and Other financial charges (450,558) (522,574)
Total from other financial charges (450,558) (522,574)

17-bis) Net Income (loss) on exchange (128,213) 75,964

Total (15+16+17+17bis) (337,647) (227,040)

Before tax result (A-B+C+/-D+/-E) 6,673,203 4,393,787

22) Income taxes
Current taxes (1,702,486) (1,376,552)
Deferred tax charges and benefit (192,163) 104,917

Total income taxes (1,894,649) (1,271,635)

23) Net income 4,778,554 3,122,152
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Notes to financial statements

1. Principles of Consolidation

The principles of consolidation followed in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are 
outlined below.
a) The consolidated financial statements are the result of the aggregated financial statement as of 31 

December 2016 of the parent company and of its subsidiaries as mentioned above, respectively 
approved by their boards of directors or sole administrators, adequately reclassified and amended 
in order for them to be consistent with the Group consolidation policies.

b) The result of the companies that are consolidated for the first time during the financial year is fully 
consolidated only in case the consolidation conditions arise in the first period of the year. The net 
profit (loss) is shown in a different line of the consolidated profit and loss.

c) The financial year, for all the Group’s companies, coincides with the calendar year.
d) The assets and liabilities of subsidiaries are consolidated on a line-by-line basis and the carrying 

value of intercompany investments held is eliminated against the related shareholder’s equity 
accounts. The non-controlling interests of consolidated subsidiaries are separately reported in 
the consolidated balance sheets and consolidated statements of operations. All intercompany 
balances and transactions are eliminated in consolidation. 

  The difference between the carrying value of intercompany investments of subsidiaries and the 
related shareholders’ account, at the date of acquisition, is allocated, where possible, to the 
related either asset or liabilities of the subsidiaries’ financial statements.  

  In case of positive difference, which constitutes the goodwill paid for the subsidiaries, the different 
amount is allocated in the line “goodwill arising from acquisitions” and it is amortized over five years.

  In case of negative difference, this is recorded in the line “consolidation reserve” unless the 
negative difference has to be referred to adverse forecasted result of the subsidiary following 
the acquisition. In this case the difference is allocated line “other liabilities”. The amount will be 
released to the profit and loss when the forecasted negative result is realized. 

e) All intercompany balances and transactions are eliminated in consolidation. Profits and losses 
deriving from intercompany transactions and not realized with third independent parties are 
eliminated, when material, also considering the relative tax effects. 

f) The non-controlling interests of consolidated subsidiaries are separately reported in the 
consolidated balance sheets and consolidated statements of operations in line “minority interests”. 

g) The fiscal effect of consolidation adjustments, when material, is recorded and represented in the 
financial statements. The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities are respectively and 
separately shown in the balance sheet. In the consolidated statements of operations, deferred 
taxes are shown in the group “net income taxes”.  

h) In the consolidated financial statements the tax on dividends distribution are not recorded when 
it is assumed that the profit will be reinvested in the company. In the same case no taxes are 
recorded on reserve that will be subject to taxation only in case of distribution to the shareholders.

2. Evaluation and accounting principles adopted for the preparation of 
the consolidated financial statements

The present consolidated financial statements are prepared according to Italian legal law requirements 
governing financial statements, considered in conjunction with established accounting principles 
promulgated by the Italian Accounting Profession (OIC). 
Assets and liabilities are evaluated based on the general criteria of prudence and matching principle, on 
the basis of the going concern assumption. The evaluation criteria and significant accounting policies 
followed in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are outlined below.  
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Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recorded at cost, net of the amortization expense calculated on the straight-
line method. Other intangible assets primarily include software and trademarks, and are stated at 
cost, net of the amortization expense calculated on the straight-line method over their estimated 
useful life. Set-up costs, advertising costs and goodwill are recorded with the consent of the board of 
statutory auditors, and are stated at cost, net of the amortization expense calculated on the straight-
line method over a period of five years. The carrying amounts of these assets are reviewed to 
determine if they are in excess of their recoverable amount at the consolidated balance sheet date. 
If the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount, the asset is written down to the recoverable 
amount.

Tangible assets

Properties, plants and equipments are stated at historical cost except for certain buildings that were 
revaluated in 2000, 2001 and 2009 according to Italian revaluation laws.
The cost or revaluation of fixed assets is depreciated on the straight-line method over the assets’ 
estimated useful lives. The assets acquired by the user of leasing contracts are recorded in the balance 
sheet using the so-called “financial method”, so the value of the asset is recorded among the equipments 
and the debt towards leasing companies is recorded among the liabilities and progressively reduced on 
the basis of the relative amortization plan. 
In the profit and loss the leasing costs are replaced by costs of interest and by amortization costs 
according to the useful lives of the acquired good.
Maintenance and repairs are expensed; significant improvements are capitalized and depreciated over 
the useful life of the related assets. 
Investment in affiliates and other financial assets.
Investments in controlled and associated companies that are not consolidated according to the full 
method are evaluated according to the equity method. Investments in affiliates and other financial 
assets are recorded according to historic cost criteria. Eventually they are write-off when their market 
value results to be permanently inferior. Investments in controlled companies and affiliates which are 
held for sale are evaluated at the lower value between historic cost and market value. 

Accounts receivable and payable

Receivables are recorded at their probable realization value at the balance sheet date. This is realized 
by stating the receivables at their nominal value net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. Payables 
are stated at their face value.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash is booked at its face value, whereas bank accounts and deposits are recorded at their probable 
realization value, that, in this case, coincides with face value. Bank deposits in currencies other than 
Euro are converted using the exchange rate at the date of balance sheet published by Bank of Italy.

Employees’ leaving entitlement

Leaving entitlements represent amounts accrued for each Italian employee that are due and payable 
upon termination of employment, assuming immediate separation, determined in accordance with 
applicable Italian labour laws. The Group accrues the full amount of employees’ vested benefit 
obligation as determined by such laws for leaving entitlements. 
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Debts

Payables are recognized in the financial statements in accordance with the amortized cost method, 
taking into account the time factor and expected realizable value. In particular, the initial recognition 
value is the face value of the debt, net of transaction costs and all the awards, rebates and rebates 
directly deriving from the debt-generating transaction. Transaction costs, any commissions incurred 
and liabilities and any differences between initial value and nominal value at maturity are included in 
the amortized cost calculation using the effective interest criterion. It should be noted that, as allowed 
by Dlgs 139/15, as of December 31, 2016, the debts already outstanding at December 31, 2015 are 
recorded at nominal value.

Contingencies

Liabilities for loss contingencies are recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and 
the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.

Current income taxes

Current income taxes are determined on the basis of a realistic estimate of the taxes payable under 
current tax law and stated, as part of the equity, net of prepayments and withholdings. Any excess 
credit is entered on the assets under the item “Tax receivables balance sheet”, while the debt under 
“tax liabilities”.

Prepaid and deferred taxes

Prepaid and deferred taxes are recognized in order to reflect the future benefits and / or tax burdens 
found with temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities recorded in 
the financial statements and the corresponding values considered for the purpose of the calculation of 
current taxes, as well as from any tax losses carried forward.
Deferred taxes are recorded, in respect to the principle of prudence, if there is a reasonable certainty in 
the years in which the temporary differences are deductible, leading to the recognition of deferred tax, 
an income tax not less than the differences that will be reversed. Conversely, the deferred tax liabilities 
are not recorded if there is little likelihood that the corresponding liabilities may occur.
The credit relating to the tax benefit connected to loss carried forward is recognized in the balance sheet 
if the following conditions occur at the same time: there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient taxable 
income in the future that will be able to absorb the losses carried forward within the period in which they 
are deductible according to the tax legislation; the losses in question are derived from easily identifiable 
circumstances and it is reasonably certain that these circumstances will not be repeated in the future.
Deferred taxes are determined based on the tax rates for the taxation of income for the years in which 
the temporary differences will be eliminated. The effect of the change in tax rates on these taxes are 
recognized in the period in which they are approved relevant legislative measures.
In the balance sheet, deferred taxes and deferred tax liabilities are recognized separately under the 
section “Deferred tax assets” and “provisions for risks and charges”. In the income statement, deferred 
and prepaid taxes are included under “Income taxes”.

Recognition of revenues and costs

Revenues from the sale of the products and the costs for their purchase are recognized at the time of 
transferring all the risks and benefits associated with the property, a passage that commonly coincides 
with the shipment or delivery of the goods. Revenues and costs for services are recognized when the 
service is performed.
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Other income and expenses

They are recorded in accordance with the principles of prudence and competence with the recognition 
of accruals and deferrals.

Leased goods

Capital goods held under finance leases are accounted for under the financial method, and are 
appropriately enrolled among tangible fixed assets giving evidence to the substance as a financing 
transaction.

Potential liabilities

Losses from potential liabilities are recognized amongst the risks when there are the following 
conditions:
• The availability at the time of preparation of the financial statements with information which suggest 

the likely occurrence of the events involving the rise of a liability or the reduction of an activity;
• The ability to estimate the extent of the burden to a reasonable degree.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognized at fair value. Fair value changes are recognized in the 
income statement or, if the instrument covers the risk of changes in expected cash flows of another 
financial instrument or planned operation, directly to a positive or negative equity reserve; Such reserve 
is charged to the income statement in the extent and timing of the occurrence or modification of the 
cash flows of the hedged instrument or the occurrence of the hedged transaction. If the fair value at 
the reporting date is positive, it is entered under the item “financial derivative instruments” between 
financial fixed assets or between financial assets that are not fixed assets. If the value is negative it is 
entered under the item “financial derivative instruments” among the provisions for risks and charges.

3. Reconciliation scheme between the parent company’s net worth 
equity and result and consolidated net worth equity and result

Below the reconciliation scheme of GTS Holding S.r.l. as of 31 December 2016 and Group financial 
statements:

2016

Net worth equity €/1000

Parent company book value 2015 2,038

Difference between the carrying value and intercompany investments against the 
related shareholders net worth equity 14,267

Other consolidation adjustments (16)

Aid for investment (1,854)

Leasing operation 5,963

Dividend elision (88)

Tax effect of consolidation adjustment (87)

Booking value of group financial statement 20,223
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Reconciliation net income 2016

Net worth equity €/1000

Net income parent company 59

Subsidiaries net income 3,746

IAS 17 adjustments 1,341

Tax credit (262)

Amortization (7)

Intragroup profits (88)

Tax on earnings (10)

Net income 4,779

4. Intangible assets

Accounting net value Balance as of 31/12/16 Balance as of 31/12/15  Tax rate

Set-up cost 14,347 25,877 25%

Industrial and intellectual property rights 150,305 207,227 25%

Assets under development and advances 1,650 -

Others 329,827 403,304 20%

Total 496,129 636,407

Historical Cost
Balance as of 

31/12/2015 Gains Decreases
Balance as of 

31/12/2016

Plant and expansion costs 1,301,876 - - 1,301,876 

Industrial and intellectual property patent rights 466,760 6,265 - 473,025

Concessions, licenses, trademarks and the like 2,400 - - 2,400 

Assets under development and advances - 1,650 - 1,650 

Other intangible assets 1,315,392 4,670     - 1,320,062 

Total historical cost 3,086,428 12,585     - 3,087,498

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as of 

31/12/2015 gains Decreases
Balance as of 

31/12/2016

Plant and expansion costs (1,275,998) (11,901) - (1,287,899)

Industrial and intellectual property patent rights (259,534) (64,184) - (323,718)

Concessions, licenses, trademarks and the like (2,400) - - (2,400)

Other (913,160) (75,940)     - (989,100)

Total (2,451,092) (152,025)     - (2,603,117)

Expenditure and Expenditure Costs includes investment for the expansion of railway activity and costs 
for the acquisition of railway licenses. The intellectual property rights of Industrial Patents and Geniality 
works, on the other hand, include the expenditure on Software investments used by Group companies. 
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The item Other intangible assets includes investments in real estate, in order to adapt to operational 
and security requirements, held for lease.

5. Tangible assets

Countable net Value Balance as of 31/12/16 Balance as of 31/12/15

Land and industrial buildings 5,098,186 5,204,823

Equipment and Machinery 38,794,315 30,003,946

Industrial machinery 44,312 18,045

Other tangible assets 284,377 433,630

Assets in progress and advances 3,511,803 760,363

Total Tangible Assets 47,732,993 36,420,808

Historical cost

Balance  
as of 

31/12/15

Increases
Total 

Increases Sales Transfers
Decreases 

total

Balance  
as of 

31/12/16
Third party 
purchases Transfers

Land and Buildings 6,788,234 79,046 - 79,046 - - - 6,867,280
Equipment and 
Machinery 39,217,344 10,035,068 627,000 10,662,068 (341,782) - (341,782) 49,537,630
Industrial and 
commercial 
equipment 108,423 34,369 - 34,369 - - - 142,792

Other assets 3,057,695 116,218 - 116,218 (250) - (250) 3,173,663
Assets in progress 
and advances 760,363 3,378,440     - 3,378,440     - (627,000) (627,000) 3,511,809

Total 49,932,60 13,643,141 627,000 14,270,141 (342,032) (627,000) (969,032) 63,233,168

Depreciation Fund

Balance  
as of  

31/12/15

Increases
Total 

Increases Sales
Decreases 

total

Balance  
as of  

31/12/16Amortization 

Land and Buildings (1,583,411) (185,683) (185,683) - - (1,769,094)
Equipment and 
Machinery (9,213,398) (1,873,064) (1,873,064) 343,147 343,147 (10,743,315)
Industrial and 
commercial 
equipment (90,378) (8,102) (8,102) - - (98,480)

Other assets (2,624,066) (265,890) (265,890) 670 670 (2,889,286)
Assets in progress 
and advances     -     -     -     -     -     -

Total Funds (13,511,253) (2,238,026) (2,238,026) 343,817 343,817 (15,500,175)

“Land and Buildings” includes properties owned by the Group where the production business is 
based. These properties are located in the industrial zones of   Bari and Piacenza. These properties 
were revalued under Law Decree no. 2 of January 28, 2009, and a non-amortized value of EUR 835,234 
remained in the balance sheet. The property of G.T.S. - General Transport Service S.p.a. was granted 
a mortgage loan for the anticipation of the purchase of locomotives, subsequently transferred to GTS 
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Rail S.p.a. In the splitting operation of the railway company branch. During the year the subsidiary 
GTS Rail S.p.a. created a Rotary Material Workshop (OMR), whose total investment results from fixed 
assets and advances. The subtopic Plant and Machinery sees the values   referring to the instruments 
adopted by the Group companies for the production of rail transport and traction services. In 
particular, the topic includes the value of the 10 locomotives owned, with a total historical cost of 
over € 31.7 million, acquired through leasing contracts. Their estimated life expectancy is 30 years. 
In the special passive topic the funds for the maintenance provided for by the regulations on railway 
safety and traffic are allocated. During the year, the last three locomotives, Felicia, Leonida and 
Apulia, were delivered for a total investment of 9.4 million euros. Among plants and machinery, 
1,800 containers are also allocated, as well as the value of 130 Rail Wagons. The topic Other assets 
also includes the value of Industrial Vehicles, such as container handling cranes, fleet of transport 
vehicles and their semi-trailers.

6. Financial Assets

Details 2016 2015 Delta

Investments in subsidiary companies 67,369 67,369 -

Investments in other companies 14,582 14,582 -

Total Investments 81,951 81,951 -

Loans V / Companies not Consolidated 78,619 64,816 13,803

Total V / unconsolidated 78,619 64,816 13,803

Deposits for leasing and rentals 227,892 227,892     -

Total current receivables 306,511 292,708 13,803

Total Financial Assets 388,463 374,659 13,803

The assessment according to the Equity method of unconsolidated companies would not differ from 
the value of those valued at cost. 

7. Receivables of the current assets

Credits 2016 2015 Delta

Trade receivables 24,309,481 22,612,341 1,697,140

Tax credits 74,023 - 74,023

Tax credits 279,620 941,518 (661,898)

Deferred tax 557,311 407,442 149,869

Others receivables 5,444,759 3,096,751 2,348,008

Total receivables from Current asset 30,665,194 27,058,052 3,607,142
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The topic Loans to customers is as follows:

2016 2015 Delta

Receivables for Invoices issued 24,322,041 22,319,695 2,002,346

Credits for Invoices to be issued 845,170 1,041,667 (196,497)

Bank receivables and receipts 688,530 673,675 14,855

Subtotal 25,855,741 24,035,038 1,820,703

Credit Notes to be issued (238,256) (169,743) (68,513)

Adjustments for non-performing loans (1,308,004) (1,252,953) (55,051)

Total loans to customers 24,309,481 22,612,341 1,697,140

Credits are exposed to their estimated realizable value. There are no credits whose realization is 
expected beyond the next financial year. The provision for doubtful debts was adjusted to align the 
receivables at their estimated realizable value.

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Balance 2015 (1,252,953)

Provisions (139,032)

Usage 83,981

Balance 2016 (1,308,004)

There following is a classification of Credits by geographical area in order to highlight Country Risk

2016 2015

Customers operating in EU countries 7,218,766 8,977,945

Clients operating in countries outside the EU 1,034,365 818,250

Italian Customers 16,056,350 12,816,146

Total Credits v / Customers 24,309,481 22,612,341

The following is the detail of Non – Performing Tax Claims at the balance sheet date

Tax Credits 2016 2015 Delta

VAT error 212,042 759,723 (547,681)

Loans receivable from road haulage 27,917 43,415 (15,498)

Income tax receivables 14,434 108,356 (93,922)

Other Loans and advances 25,227 30,024 (4,797)

Total Receivables 279,620 941,518 (661,898)
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The following Advance Taxes are entered in the Financial Statements as they are deemed fiscally recoverable:

Anticipated Taxes 2016 2015 Delta

Real estate revaluation 48,143 53,990 (5,847)

Provisions for risks and charges 323,330 178,386 144,944

Balance Sheet Bad Credit Taxes 145,540 141,220 4,320

Inferior Leasing amm. Period 27,101 21,656 5,445

Other temporary differences 13,197 12,190 1,007

Total Anticipated Taxes 557,311 407,442 149,869

The Credit to Other Creditors is as composed

Other Receivables 2016 2015 Delta

Credits for Contributions Ministry of Transport 1,334,059 1,623,410 (289,351)

Contributions from other non-domestic entities 880,786 1,061,256 (180,470)

Receivables from suppliers 2,681,521 - 2,681,521

Other Loans and advances 548,393 412,085 136,308

Other Total Receivables 5,444,759 3,096,751 2,348,008

Details are provided in terms of presumed revenue: 

Presumed Revenue Details within 12 months more than 12 months more than 5 years
Credits for contributions Ministry of 
Transport 258,139 907,445 168,475 
Credits for Contributions Other Non-
National Institutions 880,776 - -

Other Loans and advances 3,229,924     -     -

Total Other receivables 4,368,839 907,445 168,475

The topic receivable from suppliers takes into account the credit of the subsidiary GTS rail S.p.a. towards 
the Infrastructure and Transport Management following the recognition of the contribution referred to 
in art. 1 paragraph 294 of the law of December 23rd, 2014 n.190. Please refer to the Production Value 
section for details.

8. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as of 31 December 2016 are analyzed as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents (€) 2016 2015 Delta

Bank and postal deposits 1,964,209 3,086,636 (1,122,427)

Cheques 26,034 51,356 (25,322)

Cash on hand 9,269 25,343 (16,074)

Total 1,999,513 3,163,335 (1,163,822)
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These available funds reside on National credit Bodies and are highly liquid. Under the cash, foreign 
Exchange stocks they were converted at the exchange rate as of 31.12.2016. Liquid assets have 
decreased to 1,163,822 €.

9. Accrued income and prepayments

Accrued income and prepaid expenses are mostly composed of suspended charges related to transport 
services that have not been recognized during the current financial year.

2016 2015 Delta

Accrued income 23,851 37,367 (13,516)

Prepayments and deferred costs 1,399,900 969,167 (460,733)

Total 1,423,751 1,006,534 (417,217)

The Active Accrued income refers the interest earned, but not yet received by 31.12.2016. The Prepaid 
Expenses consist, for the most part, of the deferred costs related to benefits for transport services that 
have not had economic recognition during the year, as revenues, since its performance was completed 
in the following year. Related passive benefits not concluded, are instead suspended between the 
deferred income. Both parts, costs and suspended revenues, will receive economic recognition in 
the following year, when it can be considered a concluded action. This being said, in strict adherence 
to the principle of accrual laid down by Article. 2423 of the Civil Code and recalled by the National 
Accounting Standards. The same is expressed in the report of company incidents for the period where 
they see themselves in terms of their maturity achieved, complex utility and sales as well as the use 
raw material resources. To this effect, the balance system as it stands now expects, as a preliminary, to 
determine the economic competence with respect to revenues, and then correlate all of those capital 
costs of obtaining the same. About to, properly and in accordance with the law to the accrual method 
for revenue, you have to the extent that the provision of transport is to be completed. The assessment 
behaviour in question has led to the quantification of specific masses of active expenses and deferred 
income, determined analytically, representative of the intangible tank report to the next period, where 
we will witness the accrual of related cost and revenue profiles. 
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10. Net equity

Net equity as of 31 December 2016 is analysed as follows:

Net equity (€) 31/12/2015 Increments Decrements 31/12/2016 

Share Capital 890,530 - - 890,530

Share premium reserve - - - -

Revaluation and Amnesty reserves - - - -

Legal reserve 56,080 - - 56,080

Statutory reserve - - - -

Own Portfolio reserve - - -

Other reserve 3,920,346 1,644,629 - 5,564,975

Reserve art. 42 dl 31.05.2012 - - - -

Amnesty Reserve dl. 289/2002 - - - -

Reserve Cash Flow Funds - - (43,055) (43,055)

Net income (loss) carried forward - - (29,510) (29,510)

Net income (loss) 1,644,629 2,475,567 (1,644,629) 2,475,567

Consolidation reserve 1,756,180 - - 1,756,180

Total group Equity 8,267,764 4,120,196 (1,717,194) 10,670,766

Third parties Indivisible profits 5,853,785 1,477,523 (81,600) 7,249,708

Third-party profit 1,477,523 2,302,987 (1,477,523) 2,302,987

Capital and Third Party Reserves 7,331,308 3,780,510 (1,559,123) 9,552,694

TOTAL 15,599,072 7,900,706 (3,276,317) 20,223,461

The increases refer to the result from the exercise achieved. 

11. Provisions for contingencies and obligations

Provisions are analyzed as follows:

Provisions (€) 2016 2015 Delta

Pension liabilities 20,000 200,000 (180,000)

Deferred tax provision 1,701,188 1,496,329 204,859

Legal actions provision 43,055 - 43,055

Maintenance fund 1,347,207 1,581,708 (234,501)

Supplementary Client Benefit Funds 24,253 17,647 6,606

Total provisions for contingencies and obligations 3,135,703 3,295,684 (159,981)
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The deferred tax provision expenses were as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities (€) 2016 2015 Delta

Art. 88/B grants 31,788 31,788 -

Art 42. ld n. 78/2010 reserve 103,638 103,638 -

Deferred taxes on leasing contracts 1,525,681 1,330,961 194,720

Deferred taxes on retained earnings 37,019 26,880 10,139

Other temporary differences 3,062 3,062     -

Total deferred tax liabilities 1,701,188 1,496,329 204,859

Deferred taxes on Financial Leasing have been allocated in the consolidation phase followed after the 
enrolment in the financial statements, according to the financial lease method instead of equity, as 
is adopted in the separate financial statements of consolidated companies. This methodology differs 
from the tax treatment that these assets have had from the individual companies, and therefore, 
in order to align the tax rate during the years of payment of the lease and those to follow, it was 
decided to allocate the related deferred tax liabilities. These taxes will be rebated when the lease 
expires and for consolidation purposes they will continue to bring in depreciated assets based on 
their useful life, according to the depreciation rates adopted. Taxes on retained earnings, on the 
other hand, concern the expenses that the parent company would have to bear in order to benefit 
from the dividends, if distributed. 

The amount of deferred tax in the financial statement is as follows:

Deferred tax 2015 (€) 1,496,329

Increments on leasing 194,720

Usages -

Other decrements 10,139

Deferred tax 2016 1,701,188

The Group currently has no ongoing disputes which determine with reasonable probability the outlay 
of sums.

The Maintenance Fund is related to the extraordinary maintenance charges that will be incurred for 
the locomotives acquired by the GTS Rail Spa Group company, the achievement of the mileage and 
the timeliness provided by the related maintenance plans as well as the disciplines From national 
legislation and forwarded to the competent supervisory authority at the National Agency for Railway 
Safety (ANSF) Institute. The fund increased by € 397,642 and was used for maintenance payments of 
€ 544,326. In addition, about 88 thousand euros of the fund was used, as it was able to optimize the 
timing of interventions on locomotives by reducing overall cost.

12. Employee termination indemnity

It amounts to € 1,528,937 and represents the Group’s effective amount as of 31/12/2016 to employees 
in service at that date, net of advances paid and calculated according to the provisions of C.C.N.L. of 
category and to the applicable laws.
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Employee termination indemnity as of 31/12/2015 (€) 1,350,914

Increases 347,854

Usages (169,831)

Employee termination indemnity as of 31/12/2016 1,528,937

13. Payables

The total of payables amounts to € 53,869,310 Euros with an increase of € 9,514,563 Euros in comparison 
to last year and is analyzed as follows:

Payables (€) 2016 2015 Delta

Due to banks (within 12 months) 6,209,451 4,441,395 1,768,056

Due to banks (over 12 months) 25,209,059 18,434,479 6,774,580

Due to other financial partners 2,083 2,695 (612)

Prepayments received 5,638 5,926 (288)

Trade payables 20,173,592 19,483,727 689,865

Due to not consolidated company 6,051 6,000 51

Due tax payables 808,403 549,835 258,568

Due to social security institutions 292,010 254,156 37,854

Other debts 1,163,023 1,173,249 (13,511)

due to other group companies 750 750 -

debts to other creditors 1,162,273 1,172,499 (13,511)

Total 53,869,310 44,352,211 9,517,099

Amounts due to Banks receive exposure to bank credit on advance account bills for 394 thousand 
euro, the remaining amount of Capital due in Debts for Medium / Long-term loans making a total of 
8 million 684 thousand euro, and the remaining amount due in capital of amounts due under loans 
against the Company of Leasing for a total of EUR 22 million 48 thousand. For clarity the data is laid 
out in the table below.

Debts due to banks (€) 2016 2015 Delta

Advances on invoices 325,239 509,632 (184,393)

Long term loan - Mediocredito 394,294 972,222 (577,928)

Long term loan – Mediocredito II 1,994,126 - 1,994,126

Long term loan – BPP 2,000,000 - 2,000,0000

Long term loan - Carime 2,577,880 2,986,519 (408,639)

Long term loan - San paolo 1,018,008 1,450,173 (432,165)

Long term loan – Banca Popolare di Bari 710,408 852,536 (142,128)

Debt vs. leasing companies 22,398,555 16,104,792 6,293,763

Total 31,418,510 22,875,874 8,542,636
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During the financial year 2016, the company G.T.S. - GENERAL TRANSPORT SERVICE SPA, stipulated a 
new medium-term loan agreement with Banca Popolare Pugliese for a total amount of 2 million € for 
the purchase of assests where the group operates. In 2015 GTS RAIL S.P.A. increased its fleet with three 
additional locomotives by switching to a new lease agreement amounting to 8 million 300 thousand 
Euros. In addition, it has launched a medium-long term loan of € 2 million to finance the construction 
of the Rolling Stock Workshop.

Trade payables are analyzed as follows:

Trade payables (€) 2016 2015 Delta

Trade payables for invoices received 17,540,964 19,439,715 (1,898,751)

Trade payables for invoices to be received 3,204,799 1,389,421 1,830,378

Credit notes to be received (572,171) (1,330,409) 758,238

Total 20,173,592 19,483,727 689,865

The due tax payables line includes the following:

Tax payables (€) 2016 2015 Delta

Withholding taxes 221,507 204,277 17,230

Vat 230,346 - 230,346

Other taxes 22,780 11,498 11,282

Ires (income taxes) 216,776 324,884 (108,108)

Irap (income taxes) 116,994 9,176 107,818

Total due tax payables 808,403 549,835 258,568

A detailed description of payables due to social security institutions and of other payables is given below

Social security institutions (€) 2016 2015 Delta

InpS 261,299 245,073 16,226

Inail 8380 1988 6,392

Other social security institutions 22,331 7,095 15,236

Total of other social security institutions 292,010 254,156 37,854

Other payables (€) 2016 2015 Delta

Personnel compensation Customers guarantee deposits 331,679 305,658 26,021

Deferred income 705,803 704,747 –

Deposits and Liabilities – 59,600 -59,600

Directors 4,273 3,445 828

Payables v / Members 96,400 88,100 8,300

Other debts 24,868 12,449 12,419

Other debts Total 1,163,023 1,173,999 (10,976)
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14. Accrued expenses and deferred income

Accrued expenses and deferred income are analyzed as follows:

Accrued expenses and deferred income (€) 2016 2015 Delta

Deffered income 7,473 33,967 (26,494)

Deferred income on not complete orders 1,169,305 1,075,391 93,914

Deferred income on governing grants 61,966 69,988 (8,022)

Deferred income on tax credit 2,845,478 2,968,362 (122,884)

Total accrued expenses and deferred income 4,084,223 4,147,708 (63,485)

Deferred incomes of Services include the portion of revenues relating to transport and at year end are not 
completed and therefore cannot be recognized as such. The cash flow effect in terms of the credit report 
is not representative of the economic representation, so, properly on the basis of regulatory signs, and 
related OIC accounting principles, they were analytically determined individual deferred income shares 
of each transport position. Deferred income about Contributions belongs to contributions received and 
/ or accounted for which economic event will be correlated to costs to be sustained in future periods. 
The same account also includes the deferral of the tax credit on the locomotives. Regarding the deferral 
of the tax credit, in accordance with the method of accounting with the financial assets acquired by 
leasing, on which the loan was granted, steps were taken to reformulate the competition of the same 
to the consolidated income statement on the basis of depreciation of the assets entered in the budget.

15. Statements of operations - value of production

In 2016 the Group reached a turnover of 85.3 million €. In addition to this, grants for operating 
expenses of 10.4 million Euros relating for the most part to additional Contributions to rail transport. 
These contributions, common to the whole sector, aim to make the mode of transport by rail more 
attractive to the market considering the positive impacts in terms of benefits for the community, 
the environment and safety, the gradual replacement of transport by road with transport via Rail. 
The operating grants also include the amount of the tax credit part of the competence related to the 
amortization of locomotives.

Value of production (€) 2016 2015 Delta Var.

Revenues from sales and services 84,657,464 79,420,187 5,237,277 6.59%

Other revenues 630,987 676,821 (45,834 (6.77%

Sales revenues 85,288,451 80,097,008 5,191,443 6.48%

Contribution 10,391,351 5,515,443 4,875,908 88.40%

Total value of Production 95,679,802 85,612,451 10,067,351 11.76%

The value of Revenues for Sales and Services marks an increase of 6.59%, due to a greater number of 
shipments. Contributions on account of the increase will increase as a result of the recognition, and the 
relative accounting for the contributions to freight transport by rail as per art. 1 paragraph 294 of the 
law of December 23, 2014 n.190. The amount refers to the portion of the 2015 financial year, in total, 
and only partly for the year 2016, in respect of the amount of the contribution referred to in Article 2 
(1) (a), as objectively estimable. The contribution fee referred to in Article 2 (1) (b) shall be notified by 
the Infrastructure Manager.

[92] 4. GTS Holding Group Consolidated Financial Statements 2016



The following is a breakdown of revenues by geographical area:

Revenues by Geographical area (€) 2016 2015 Inc%16 Inc%15

Italy 45,603,913 37,213,832 46% 50%

Europe 35,360,943 38,538,801 48% 44%

Non EU 4,323,595 4,344,375 5% 6%

Total 85,288,451 80,097,008

16. Raw material Costs

The topic Raw Materials mainly covers the costs incurred for the purchase of fuel, tires and workshop 
materials used for the Group’s own funds. The item fell by € 162 thousand, from € 1,018 thousand to 
€ 855 thousand. 

17. Services Costs

Services costs are analyzed as follows:

Services costs (€) 2016 2015 Delta

Railroad transport Services 23,456,378 20,854,716 2,601,662

Highway transport Services 26,402,404 23,914,294 2,488,110

Terminal services 5,721,505 4,910,319 811,187

Maritime transport services 5,992,884 5,970,256 22,628

Services railway traction 119,976 187,174 (67,198)

Maintenance 1,682,009 1,642,913 39,096

Commercial Services 550,102 477,683 72,420

Insurance Costs 450,893 494,432 (43,539)

Consultations 364,070 296,634 67,435

Directors and auditors Compensation 274,726 273,595 1,130

Other Services 701,016 572,622 128,394

Haulage costs 4,098,350 3,223,989 874,361

Locomotive damage 685,320 48,816 636,504

Maneuver 2,164,990 2,073,727 91,263

Transfer expenses 668,338 578,575 89,763

Total 73,332,960 65,519,745 7,813,215

Rising costs is proportional to the increase in production. In particular, we highlight how the increase of 
maintenance costs is due both to the increase of the fleet of locomotives, and the rising maintenance 
costs for railway wagons.
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18. Compensation of Directors and Auditors

Compensation of directors and auditors are analyzed as follows:

Compensation of Directors and auditors (€) 2016 2015 Delta

Directors (217,051) (228,834) 11,783

Auditors (57,674) (44,761) (12,913)

Total (274,726) (273,595) (1,130)

It is also noted that the company did not grant advances and credits to directors and statutory auditors.

19. Costs for leases and rentals

Costs for leases and rentals (€) 2016 2015 Delta

Rental of rail material (1,802,722) (2,122,774) 320,052

Leases of properties (674,727) (695,902) 21,175

Other leases costs (140,097) (242,830) (102,733)

Total (2,617,546) (3,061,506) 443,960

This includes freight rates for locomotives and railway wagons, as well as the rental payments for areas 
used by the Group to carry on its business. The railway equipment rental decreases are due to the 
reduction of leased wagons followed by the purchase of own wagons. 

20. Personnel costs

Personnel costs are analysed as follows: 

Personnel costs (€) 2016 2015 Delta

Wages and salaries 6,307,680 5,519,077 788,603

Social security contributions 1,637,683 1,592,471 45,212

Severance indemnity 410,486 359,077 51,409

Other costs 102,495 88,441 14,054

Total 8,458,342 7,559,065 899,277
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The average number of employees of the Group’s companies included in consolidation as of 31st 
December 2016 financial year is analyzed as follows:

N. employees

Executives 2

Managers 9

Office Workers 50

Train drivers and rail operators 65

Truck drivers 15

Labourers 9

Total 150

21. Amortization 

Below amortization recorded in the statement of operations for each asset category:

Tangible assets (€) 2016 2015 Delta Amm.

Land and Buildings 185,683 183,251  2,432

Plants and Machinery 1,873,064 1,715,110 157,954 3%-15%

Industrial and Commercial Equipment 8,102 7,709 393 12%-20%

Other assets 265,890 331,956 (66,066) 10%-20%

Total amortization of tangible assets 2,332,739 2,238,026 94,713

Intangible Assets 2016 2015 Delta Amm.

Set-up costs 11,901 189,759 (177,858) 20%-25%

Industrial and intellectual property rights 64,184 51,938 12,246 20%-25%

Other intangible assets 75,939 83,017 (7,078) 20%-25%

Total amortization of intangible assets 152,024 324,714 (172,690)

22. Provision charges for risks and liabilities

Provisions for costs exist in order to be divided among the various years, following the principle of 
responsibility, the cost for major maintenance of locomotives by the contract, which will be supported 
to achieve the expected mileage in the maintenance plan required to be able to circulate in the 
national network in accordance with the current legislation on safety in the rail traffic. The provision 
for the current financial year amounted to € 397,642 versus € 354,376 in 2015. In order to adjust the 
receivables to their estimated collectability steps were taken to increase the provision for doubtful 
receivables of more than € 139,000. Deferred tax assets include additional 26,668 prepayments of 
deferred tax assets due to the 24% reduction in IRES.
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23. Financial income and charges

Financial income (€) 2016 2015 Delta

Interest income bank 502 1,128 (626)

Interest on loans - - -

Interest income on governing grants 71,950 80,410 (8,460)

Financial discounts 168,672 138,032 30,640

Total Active Financial management 241,124 219,570 21,554

Interest on contributions referring to loans to the Ministry of Infrastructure and Transport delivered 
with delay.

Financial charges (€) 2016 2015 Delta

On loans 440,332 503,434 (63,112)

On advances on invoices 1,157 11,010 (9,853)

On bank accounts 960 208 752

Others 8,119 7,922 197

Total financial charges 450,558 522,574 (72,016)

Interest charges on loans include charges paid against medium and long-term financing and against 
financial leasing.

24. Income taxes

The Group’s consolidated companies are subject to the following income tax rates:

2016

IreS 27.5%

Irap 3.90%-4.82%

Income taxes are composed as follows:

Taxes (€) 2015 2015 Delta

Ires - current income tax 1,329,265 1,142,880 186,385

Irap - current income tax 373,221 233,671 139,550

Ires deferred taxes charges (208,284) (39,316) (168,968)

Irap deferred taxes charges - - -

Ires deferred taxes benefits 400,447 -65,602 466,050

Irap deferred taxes benefits     -     -     -
Total 1,894,649 1,271,634 623,015
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Below a scheme of reconciliation regarding Income taxes of Companies of current year.

Reconciliation between theoretical taxes on net income and fiscal taxable income (€)

Rate Taxes Ires

Before taxes result 6,761,603 1,859,441

Temporary differences taxable in subsequent years (1,850,172) (508,797)

Temporary differences deductible in subsequent years 525,066 144,393

Reversal of temporary differences from previous years (516,673) (142,085)

Permanent differences 368,850 101,434

Non-taxable income (454,983) (125,120)

Non-taxable income     -     -

Operating losses carry-forwards from current year/ Taxable income 4,833,691 1,329,265

25. Other information

Commitments, guarantees provided and potential liabilities not resulting from the balance sheet

Pursuant to and for the purposes of Article 2427, paragraph 9 of the Italian Civil Code, it is noted that the 
Company has no commitments, guarantees and potential liabilities not resulting from the balance sheet. 
Items of revenue or cost of entity or exceptional incidence In accordance with art. 2427, item 13 of the 
Italian Civil Code, it is noted that no revenue or cost elements or exceptional incidence have been recorded.

Accounting Reform Accounting Effects

This note contains the information required by OIC 29 and, in particular, the description of the impacts 
that the Accounting Reform has determined on the Company’s economic, equity and equity position.

Reconciliation of Shareholders’ Equity and Explanatory Notes

Below are the reconciliations between the company’s equity at January 1, 2015 and December 31, 2015 
and the net result for the year ended December 31, 2015 prepared in accordance with the accounting 
principles in force prior to the Reform with the corresponding values Prepared in accordance with the 
new accounting principles.

Reclassifications to the balance sheet and income statement

Elimination of class E of the income statement

The Accounting Reform has eliminated class E of the income statement relating to extraordinary 
components. Consequently, the items included in these lines, in the income statement for 2015, have 
been reclassified by nature in the rows for services and revenues from sales and services.

New numbering of certain items

As a result of the cancellation and introduction of balance sheet and income statement, the numbering 
of certain items has changed.

Non-balance sheet agreements
There are no agreements resulting from the Balance Sheet, which may significantly affect the Company’s 
balance sheet and financial position and profit, pursuant to art. 2427, point 22-ter Civil Code.
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Financial Statement

DYNAMIC FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

2016 2015 
€/1,000

A- Cash flows from operating activities (Indirect method)
profit (loss for the year) 4,779 3,122

Taxes for the year 1,895 1,272
Interest expense (interest income)
(dividends)
(capital gains) / capital losses

1. Profit (loss) for the year before income taxes, interest, dividends and 
gains / losses 6,674 4,394 

adjustments for non-monopoly items that did
not have a counterpart in the CN provisions for provisions 398 664 
amortization of fixed assets 2,485 2,563
Write-downs for losses Durable value 166 358 
Other non-monetary items - 97

2. Cash flow before changes in the CCN 9,722 8,076 
Increase in inventories
Trade receivables (1,666) (604)
Suppliers 640 1,620
Accrued income and prepaid expenses (417) 1,158
Accrued expenses and deferred income (63) (1,373)
Other Changes of CCn (2,338) 1,022

3. Cash flow after changes in CCN 5,876 9,899 
Interest paid / incurred (209) (303)
Income tax paid (1,287) (311)
Dividends Cash
used in other Funds (898)
Other Cash / Payments (81) -
Other adjustments Of CCn 334 348

Financial Operational Flows (A) 3,734 9,633

B. Cash Flows from Investing Activities Property, plant and equipment Investments
Tangible assets

Investments (13,643) (9,534)
Disposals

Intangible assets
Investments (13) (147)
Disposals 15

Financial fixed assets

Cash generated from investment activities (13,656) (9,666)

C. Cash flows from financing activities Financing
Accensione Finanziamenti 12,778 8,031
repayments of loan units (3,836) (4,062)
Increase of short-term banks (184) (1,496)

Cash flows from financing activities 8,758 2,473

Increase (decrease) Cash (1,163) 2,440

Availability at the beginning of the period 3,163 723

Availability at end of period 2,000 3,163

Prof.	  Dott.	  Andrea	  Venturelli	  
Associato	  di	  Economia	  Aziendale	  nell’Università	  del	  Salento	  

Revisore	  legale	  dei	  conti	  
Dottore	  commercialista	  

	  

Relazione del revisore indipendente al bilancio consolidato ai sensi dell'art. 14 del 

D.Lgs. 27 gennaio 2010, n. 39 

 
Ai soci della GTS Holding S.r.1. 

Relazione sul bilancio consolidato 

Ho svolto la revisione contabile del bilancio consolidato della gruppo GTS, costituito 

dallo stato patrimoniale al 31 dicembre 2016, dal conto economico e dal rendiconto 

finanziario per l’esercizio chiuso a tale data e dalla nota integrativa. 

Responsabilità dell’organo amministrativo per il bilancio consolidato 

L’organo amministrativo è responsabile per la redazione del bilancio consolidato che 

fornisca una rappresentazione veritiera e corretta in conformità alle norme italiane che 

ne disciplinano i criteri di redazione. 

Responsabilità del revisore indipendente 

È mia la responsabilità di esprimere un giudizio sul bilancio consolidato sulla base della 

revisione contabile. Ho svolto la revisione contabile in conformità ai principi di 

revisione internazionali (ISA Italia) elaborati ai sensi dell’art. 11, comma 3, del D.Lgs. 

n. 39/2010. Tali principi richiedono il rispetto di principi etici, nonché la pianificazione 

e lo svolgimento della revisione contabile al fine di acquisire una ragionevole sicurezza 

che il bilancio consolidato non contenga errori significativi. 

La revisione contabile comporta lo svolgimento di procedure volte ad acquisire elementi 

probativi a supporto degli importi e delle informazioni contenuti nel bilancio 

consolidato. Le procedure scelte dipendono dal giudizio professionale del revisore, 

inclusa la valutazione dei rischi di errori significativi nel bilancio consolidato dovuti a 

frodi o a comportamenti o eventi non intenzionali. Nell’effettuare tali valutazioni del 

rischio, il revisore considera il controllo interno relativo alla redazione del bilancio 

consolidato dell’impresa che fornisca una rappresentazione veritiera e corretta al fine di 

definire procedure di revisione appropriate alle circostanze, e non per esprimere un 

giudizio sull’efficacia del controllo interno dell’impresa. La revisione contabile 

comprende altresì la valutazione dell’appropriatezza dei principi contabili adottati, della 

ragionevolezza delle stime contabili effettuate dall’organo amministrativo, nonché la 

valutazione della rappresentazione del bilancio consolidato nel suo complesso. 

Ritengo di aver acquisito elementi probativi sufficienti ed appropriati su cui basare il 

mio giudizio. 
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Relazione del revisore indipendente al bilancio consolidato ai sensi dell'art. 14 del 

D.Lgs. 27 gennaio 2010, n. 39 

 
Ai soci della GTS Holding S.r.1. 

Relazione sul bilancio consolidato 

Ho svolto la revisione contabile del bilancio consolidato della gruppo GTS, costituito 

dallo stato patrimoniale al 31 dicembre 2016, dal conto economico e dal rendiconto 

finanziario per l’esercizio chiuso a tale data e dalla nota integrativa. 

Responsabilità dell’organo amministrativo per il bilancio consolidato 

L’organo amministrativo è responsabile per la redazione del bilancio consolidato che 

fornisca una rappresentazione veritiera e corretta in conformità alle norme italiane che 

ne disciplinano i criteri di redazione. 

Responsabilità del revisore indipendente 

È mia la responsabilità di esprimere un giudizio sul bilancio consolidato sulla base della 

revisione contabile. Ho svolto la revisione contabile in conformità ai principi di 

revisione internazionali (ISA Italia) elaborati ai sensi dell’art. 11, comma 3, del D.Lgs. 

n. 39/2010. Tali principi richiedono il rispetto di principi etici, nonché la pianificazione 

e lo svolgimento della revisione contabile al fine di acquisire una ragionevole sicurezza 

che il bilancio consolidato non contenga errori significativi. 

La revisione contabile comporta lo svolgimento di procedure volte ad acquisire elementi 

probativi a supporto degli importi e delle informazioni contenuti nel bilancio 

consolidato. Le procedure scelte dipendono dal giudizio professionale del revisore, 

inclusa la valutazione dei rischi di errori significativi nel bilancio consolidato dovuti a 

frodi o a comportamenti o eventi non intenzionali. Nell’effettuare tali valutazioni del 

rischio, il revisore considera il controllo interno relativo alla redazione del bilancio 

consolidato dell’impresa che fornisca una rappresentazione veritiera e corretta al fine di 

definire procedure di revisione appropriate alle circostanze, e non per esprimere un 

giudizio sull’efficacia del controllo interno dell’impresa. La revisione contabile 

comprende altresì la valutazione dell’appropriatezza dei principi contabili adottati, della 

ragionevolezza delle stime contabili effettuate dall’organo amministrativo, nonché la 

valutazione della rappresentazione del bilancio consolidato nel suo complesso. 

Ritengo di aver acquisito elementi probativi sufficienti ed appropriati su cui basare il 

mio giudizio. 

Independent auditors’ report pursuant to article 14 of Legislative decree no. 39  

of 27 January 2010

To the shareholders of GTS HOLDING S.r.l.

Report on the consolidated financial statements

I have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the GTS Holding 

Group (the “Group”), which comprise the statement of financila position as at 31 December 

2016, the income statement, the statements of comprehnsive income, cash flows and for 

the year then ended and related notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The Group’s director is responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements 

that give a true and fair view in accordance with the Italian laws governing the criteria for 

their preparation.

Indipendent auditors’ responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements 

based on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on 

Auditing (ISA Italia) promulgated pursuant to article 11 of Legislative decreee no. 39/10. 

Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 

are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing audit procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts 

and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend 

on my judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 

assessments, I consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated 

financial statements that give a true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that 

are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 

on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating 

the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates made by the director, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 

consolidated financial statements.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for my audit opinion.
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Giudizio 

A mio giudizio, il bilancio consolidato fornisce una rappresentazione veritiera e corretta 

della situazione patrimoniale e finanziaria della società GTS Holding s.r.l. al 31 

dicembre 2016, del risultato economico e dei flussi di cassa per l’esercizio chiuso a tale 

data, in conformità alle norme italiane che ne disciplinano i criteri di redazione. 

Relazione su altre disposizioni di legge e regolamentari 

Giudizio sulla coerenza della relazione sulla gestione con il bilancio consolidato 

Ho svolto le procedure indicate nel principio di revisione (SA Italia) n. 720B al fine di 

esprimere, come richiesto dalle norme di legge, un giudizio sulla coerenza della 

relazione sulla gestione, la cui responsabilità compete all’organo amministrativo della 

GTS Holding S.r.l., con il bilancio consolidato della stessa al 31 dicembre 2016. A mio 

giudizio la relazione sulla gestione è coerente con il bilancio consolidato della GTS 

Holding S.r.l. al 31 dicembre 2016. 

 

Bari, 8 giugno 2017 

        Il Revisore Legale 

         Prof. Dott. Andrea Venturelli 

	  
	  

Opinion

In my opinion, the consolidated fi nancial statements give a true and fair view of the 

Group’s fi nancial position as at 31 December 2016 and of its fi nancial performance and 

cash fl ows for the year then ended in compliance with the Italian laws governing the 

criteria for their preparation.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinion on the consistency of the directors’ report with the consolidated fi nancial 

statements 

I have performed the procedures required by standard on Auditing (SA Italia) No. 720B 

in order to express an opinion, as required by the law, on the consistency of the directors’ 

report, which is the responsibility of the Group’s director, with the consolidated fi nancial 

statements. In my opinion, the directors’ report is consistent with the consolidated fi nancial 

statements of the GTS Holding Group as at and for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Bari, 8 June 2017

 

The independent auditor

Prof. Andrea Venturelli

This report has been translated into English from the Italian original solely for the 

convenience of international readers. I have not examined the translation of the 

consolidated fi nancial statements referred to in this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Sole Director of 
GTS HOLDING Srl

We have audited, following an engagement assigned on a voluntary basis, the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements of the GTS HOLDING Group, which comprise the balance sheet as of 
31 December 2016, the income statement and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and 
related notes.

The sole director’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The sole director is responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true 
and fair view in compliance with the Italian laws governing the criteria for their preparation.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA Italia) 
drawn up pursuant to article 11 of Legislative Decree No 39 of 27 January 2010. Those standards 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing audit procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The audit procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s professional judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial 
statements that give a true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the sole director, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position 
of the GTS HOLDING Group as of 31 December 2016 and of the result of its operations and cash flows 
for the year then ended in compliance with the Italian laws governing the criteria for their preparation.

Other aspects

This report is not issued in accordance with Italian law because in the year ended 31 December 2016
the audit engagement pursuant to article 2477 of the Civil Code was performed by other auditors.

Bari, 23 June 2017

PricewaterhouseCoopers SpA

Signed by

Corrado Aprico
(Partner)

This report has been translated into English from the Italian original solely for the convenience of 
international readers.

We have not examined the translation of the consolidated financial statements referred to in this
report.
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GRI - G4 GUIDELINES

The table below guides the reader through the identi fi cati on of informati on required by GRI G4 guidelines. 
For every type  of informati on, indicati on is given of: the code required by the standard, the number of the 
page where the piece of data can be found, the level of compliance with the standard:

● identi fi es a piece of informati on fully reported, in other words data and informati on totally meet the 
standard requirements

○ identi fi es a piece of informati on parti ally reported, in other words data and informati on meet the 
standard requirements only parti ally

— identi fi es a piece of informati on that is not reported because it is not available or because it is not 
signifi cant and, therefore, not applicable in the specifi c case.

The table below also lists the themes / topics, areas and informati on required by art. 3 Legislati ve 
Decree 254/16

GRI 
CODE INDICATOR Lev PG TOPICS ENVIRONMENT REPORT 

INFORMATION

STRATEGY AND ANALYSIS
G4-1 Provide a statement from the 

most senior decision-maker 
of the organization (such as 
Ceo, chair, or equivalent senior 
position) about the Relevance of 
sustainability to the organization 
and the organization’s strategy 
for addressing sustainability.

● 4 Social and 
Environmental

Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

-

G4-2 Provide a description of key 
impacts, risks, and  
opportunities

● 18–20 ALL Major risks 
from business 
activities, products 
/ services, supply 
chains

-

ORGANIZATIONAL PROFILE
G4-3 Report the name of the 

organization
● 11 - Business model of 

management and 
organization

-

G4-4 Report the primary brands, 
products, and services

● 6 Social, 
environmental, 
human rights

Business model of 
management and 
organization

-

G4-5 Report the location of the 
organization’s  headquarters

● 6 - Business model of 
management and 
organization

-

G4-6 Report the number of countries 
where the organization 
operates, and names of 
countries where either the 
organization has signifi cant 
operations or that are 
specifi cally relevant to the 
sustainability topics covered in 
the report

● 11 Social, 
environmental, 
human rights, 
anti-corruption

Business model of 
management and 
organization

-

G4-7 Report the nature of ownership 
and legal form

● 10 - Business model of 
management and 
organization

-
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GRI 
CODE INDICATOR Lev PG TOPICS ENVIRONMENT REPORT 

INFORMATION
G4-8 Report the markets served 

(including geographic 
breakdown, sectors served, 
and types of customers and  
benefi ciaries).

● 6 - Business model of 
management and 
organization

-

G4-9 Report the scale of the  
organization

● 7 - Business model of 
management and 
organization

-

G4-10 Report the total number of 
employees by employment 
contract and gender, by 
employment type and gender, 
total workforce (by region and 
gender) by employees and 
supervised workers and by 
gender

● 51_54 Staff Related Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Social aspects 
related to personnel 
management, 
gender equality, 
international 
conventions, dialogue 
with social partners

G4-11 Report the percentage of total 
employees covered by collective 
bargaining agreements

● 52 Staff Related Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Social aspects 
related to personnel 
management, 
gender equality, 
international 
conventions, dialogue 
with social partners

G4-12 Describe the organization’s 
supply chain

● 64 Social, 
environmental, 
human rights, 
anti-corruption

Major risks 
from business 
activities, products 
/ services, supply 
chains

Impact on 
environment, health 
and safety

G4-13 Report any signifi cant changes 
during the reporting period 
regarding the organization’s 
size, structure,
ownership, or its supply chain

● 64 Social Business model of 
management and 
organization

Greenhouse gas 
emissions and 
pollutant emissions 
in the atmosphere

G4-14 Report whether and how the 
precautionary approach or 
principle is addressed by the 
organization

● 18_20 - Major risks 
from business 
activities, products 
/ services, supply 
chains

Impact on 
environment, health 
and safety

G4-15 List externally developed 
economic, environmental and 
social charters, principles, 
or other initiatives to
which the organization 
subscribes or which it  endorses

● 13 Anti-
corruption

Business model of 
management and 
organization

Active and passive 
fi ght against 
corruption  

G4-16 List memberships of 
associations (such as industry 
associations) and national 
or international advocacy 
organizations

● 65 Social Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Social aspects 
related to personnel 
management, 
gender equality, 
international 
conventions, dialogue 
with social partners

IDENTIFIED MATERIAL ASPECTS AND BOUNDARIES
G4-17 List all entities included in the 

organization’s consolidated 
fi nancial statements or 
equivalent documents

● ● - Business model of 
management and 
organization

-
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INFORMATION
G4-18 Explain the process for defi ning 

the report content and the 
aspect Boundaries and how the 
organization has implemented 
the reporting principles for 
defi ning report Content

● 23 - Business model of 
management and 
organization

-

G4-19 List all the material aspects 
identifi ed in the process for 
defi ning report  content

● 34_35 - Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

-

G4-20 For each material aspect, report 
the aspect Boundary within the 
organization

● 34_35 ALL Major risks 
from business 
activities, products 
/ services, supply 
chains

ALL

G4-21 For each material aspect, report 
the aspect Boundary outside the 
organization

● 8_9 ALL Major risks 
from business 
activities, products 
/ services, supply 
chains

ALL

G4-22 Report the effect of any 
restatements of information 
provided in previous reports, 
and the reasons for such  
restatements

● 8_9 - - -

G4-23 Report signifi cant changes from 
previous reporting periods in the 
Scope and aspect Boundaries

● 8_9 - - -

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT
G4-24 List of Stakeholders Involved in 

the Company
● 28-32 Social Company policies, 

results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

-

G4-25 Report the basis for 
identifi cation and selection of 
stakeholders with whom to 
engage 

● 28_32 - - -

G4-26 Report the organization’s 
approach to stakeholder 
engagement, including 
frequency of engagement by 
type and by stakeholder group, 
and an indication of whether 
any of the engagement was 
undertaken specifi cally as 
part of the report preparation 
process

● 28_32 - Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

-

G4-27 Report key topics and concerns 
that have been raised through 
stakeholder engagement, 
and how the organization 
has responded to those key 
topics and concerns, including 
through its reporting. report the 
stakeholder groups that raised 
each of the key topics and  
concerns

● 33 ALL Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

All except human 
rights and the fi ght 
against corruption
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INFORMATION

PROFILE REPORT
G4-28 Reporting period (such as 

fi scal or calendar year) for 
information provided

● 8 - - -

G4-29 Date of most recent previous 
report (if any)

● 8 - - -

G4-30 Reporting cycle (such as 
annual, biennial)

● 8 - - -

G4-31 Provide the contact point for 
questions regarding the report 
or its contents

● 9 - - -

G4-32 Report the ‘in accordance’ 
option the organization has 
chosen. report the reference to 
the external assurance report, 
if the report has been externally 
assured

● 9 - - -

G4-33 Report the organization’s policy 
and current practice with regard 
to seeking external assurance 
for the report

- - - -

GOVERNANCE
G4-34 Report the governance structure 

of the organization, including 
committees of the highest 
governance body. Identify any 
committees responsible for 
decision-making on economic, 
environmental and social impacts

● 10 Social Business model of 
management and 
organization

-

G4-35 Report the process for 
delegating authority for 
economic, environmental and 
social topics from the highest 
governance body to senior 
executives and other employees

● 9 Social and 
Environmental

Business model of 
management and 
organization

-

G4-36 Report whether the organization 
has appointed an executive-
level position or positions with 
responsibility for economic, 
environmental and social topics, 
and whether post holders 
report directly to the highest 
governance body

● 8-9 Social and 
Environmental

Business model of 
management and 
organization

Social aspects 
related to personnel 
management, 
gender equality, 
international 
conventions, dialogue 
with social partners

G4-37 Report processes for 
consultation between 
stakeholders and the  highest 
governance body on economic, 
environmental and social topics. 
If consultation is delegated, 
describe to whom and any 
feedback processes to the 
highest governance body

● 28_32 Social and 
Environmental

Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

All except human 
rights and the fi ght 
against corruption

G4-38 Report the composition of the 
highest governance body and its  
committees

● 10 Social Business model of 
management and 
organization

Social aspects 
related to personnel 
management, gender 
equality, international 
conventions, dialogue 
with social partners
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INFORMATION
G4-39 Report whether the Chair of 

the highest governance body is 
also an executive offi cer (and, 
if so, his or her function within 
the organization’s management 
and the reasons for this  
arrangement)

● 10 - Business model of 
management and 
organization

-

G4-40 Report the nomination and 
selection processes for the 
highest governance body and 
its committees, and the criteria 
used for nominating and 
selecting highest governance 
body members

● 22-23 Social Business model of 
management and 
organization

-

G4-41 Report processes for the 
highest governance body to 
ensure confl icts of interest are 
avoided and managed

○ 22-23 - Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

-

G4-42 Report the highest governance 
body’s and senior executives’ 
roles in the development, 
approval, and updating of the 
organization’s purpose, value or 
mission statements, strategies, 
policies, and goals related to 
economic, environmental and 
social impacts

— Social Business model of 
management and 
organization

All except human 
rights and the fi ght 
against corruption

G4-43 Report the measures taken 
to develop and enhance the 
highest governance body’s 
collective knowledge of
economic, environmental and 
social topics

○ 16-17 Social and 
Environmental

Business model of 
management and 
organization

-

G4-44 Report the processes for 
evaluation of the highest 
governance body’s performance 
with respect to governance of 
economic, environmental and 
social topics

○ 16-17 Social and 
Environmental

Business model of 
management and 
organization

-

G4-45 Report the highest governance 
body’s role in the identifi cation 
and management of 
economic, environmental and 
social impacts, risks, and 
opportunities. Include the 
highest governance body’s role 
in the implementation of due 
diligence processes

— Social and 
Environmental

Major risks 
from business 
activities, products 
/ services, supply 
chains

Impact on 
environment, health 
and safety

G4-46 Report the highest governance 
body’s role in reviewing 
the effectiveness of the 
organization’s risk management 
processes for economic, 
environmental and social topics

— Social and 
Environmental

Major risks 
from business 
activities, products 
/ services, supply 
chains

Impact on 
environment, health 
and safety

G4-47 Report the frequency of 
the highest governance 
body’s review of economic, 
environmental and social 
impacts, risks, and opportunities

— Social and 
Environmental

Major risks 
from business 
activities, products 
/ services, supply 
chains

Impact on 
environment, health 
and safety
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INFORMATION
G4-48 Report the highest committee 

or position that formally reviews 
and approves the organization’s 
sustainability report and 
ensures that all material 
aspects are covered

● 8 - Business model of 
management and 
organization

-

G4-49 Report the process for 
communicating critical 
concerns to the highest 
governance body

● 58 - Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Social aspects 
related to personnel 
management, gender 
equality, international 
conventions, dialogue 
with social partners

G4-50 Report the nature and total 
number of critical concerns 
that were communicated to 
the highest governance body 
and the mechanism(s) used to 
address and resolve  them

— - Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Social aspects 
related to personnel 
management, gender 
equality, international 
conventions, dialogue 
with social partners

G4-51 Report the remuneration 
policies for the highest 
governance body and senior 
executives

— Human Rights Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

-

G4-52 Report the process for 
determining remuneration. 
report whether remuneration 
consultants are involved in 
determining remuneration and 
whether they are independent 
of management. Report any 
other relationships which the 
remuneration consultants have 
with the organization

— Human Rights Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

-

G4-53 Report how stakeholders’ 
views are sought and taken 
into account regarding 
remuneration, including 
the results of votes on 
remuneration policies and 
proposals, if applicable

○ 50_53 Human Rights Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Respect for human 
rights, measures 
taken to prevent 
violations, actions 
taken to prevent 
discriminatory 
attitudes or actions

G4-54 Report the ratio of the annual 
total compensation for the 
organization’s highest-paid 
individual in each country 
of signifi cant operations 
to the median annual total 
compensation for all employees 
(excluding the highest-paid 
individual) in the same country

— Human Rights Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

-

G4-55 Report the ratio of percentage 
increase in annual total 
compensation for the 
organization’s highest-paid 
individual in each country of 
signifi cant operations to the 
median percentage increase in 
annual total compensation for 
all employees (excluding the 
highest-paid individual) in the 
same country

— Human Rights Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

-
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INFORMATION

ETHICS AND INTEGRITY
G4-56 Describe the organization’s 

values, principles, standards 
and norms of behavior such as 
codes of conduct and codes of  
ethics

● 13 Social and 
Environmental

Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

ALL

G4-57 Report the internal and external 
mechanisms for seeking 
advice on ethical and lawful 
behavior, and matters related to 
organizational integrity, such as 
helplines or advice  lines

○ Anti-
corruption

Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

-

G4-58 Report the internal and external 
mechanisms for reporting 
concerns about unethical or 
unlawful behavior, and matters 
related to organizational 
integrity, such as escalation 
through line management, 
whistleblowing mechanisms or  
hotlines

○ Anti-
corruption

Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

-
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ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE
G4-EC1 Report the direct economic 

value generated and distributed
● 42_43 Environment 

and Social
Business model of 
management and 
organization

-

G4-EC2 Report risks and opportunities 
posed by climate change that 
have the potential to generate 
substantive changes in operations, 
revenue or expenditure

— Environment Major risks 
from business 
activities, products 
/ services, supply 
chains

-

G4-EC3 Where the plan’s liabilities 
are met by the organization’s 
general resources, report 
the estimated value of those 
liabilities

— Staff Related Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Social aspects 
related to personnel 
management, gender 
equality, international 
conventions, dialogue 
with social partners

G4-EC4 Report the total monetary 
value of fi nancial assistance 
received by the organization 
from governments during the 
reporting period

— Anti-
corruption

Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Active and passive 
fi ght against 
corruption

MARKET PRESENCE
G4-EC5 When a signifi cant proportion of 

the workforce is compensated 
based on wages subject to 
minimum wage rules, report the 
ratio of the entry level wage by 
gender at signifi cant locations of 
operation to the minimum wage.

○ Staff Related Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

-

G4-EC6 Report the percentage of senior 
management at signifi cant 
locations of operation that are 
hired from the local community

○ 53 Staff Related Business model of 
management and 
organization

Social aspects 
related to personnel 
management, gender 
equality, international 
conventions, dialogue 
with social partners

INDIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACTS
G4-EC7 Report the extent of 

development of signifi cant 
infrastructure investments and 
services supported (none)

— Social Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Greenhouse gas 
emissions and 
pollutant emissions 
in the atmosphere

G4-EC8 Report examples of the 
signifi cant identifi ed positive 
and negative indirect economic 
impacts the organization has

● 71 Social and 
Environmental

Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Greenhouse gas 
emissions and 
pollutant emissions 
in the atmosphere

PROCURMENT PRACTICES
G4-EC9 Report the percentage of the 

procurement budget used 
for signifi cant locations of 
operation spent on suppliers 
local to that operation (such 
as percentage of products and 
services purchased locally)

○ 64 Social 
and Anti-
corruption

Major risks 
from business 
activities, products 
/ services, supply 
chains

Active and passive 
fi ght against 
corruption

MATERIALS
G4-EN1 Report the total weight or 

volume of materials that are 
used to produce and package 
the organization’s primary 
products and services during 
the reporting period

— Environmental Company policies, 
results achieved 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Using energy 
resources and using 
water resources
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G4-EN2 Report the percentage of 

recycled input materials used to 
manufacture the organization’s 
primary products and services 
(none)

— Environmental Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Using energy 
resources and using 
water resources

ENERGY
G4-EN3 Energy consumption within the  

organization
● 72 Environmental Company policies, 

results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Using energy 
resources and using 
water resources

G4-EN4 Energy consumption outside of 
the organization

● 72 Environmental Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Using energy 
resources and using 
water resources

G4-EN5 Report the energy intensity  
ratio

— Environmental Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Using energy 
resources and using 
water resources

G4-EN6 Reduction of energy 
consumption

● 72 Environmental Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Using energy 
resources and using 
water resources

G4-EN7 Reductions in energy 
requirements of products and 
services

— Environmental Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Using energy 
resources and using 
water resources

WATER
G4-EN8 Report the total volume of water 

withdrawn from the following 
sources

— Environmental Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Using energy 
resources and using 
water resources

G4-EN9 Report the total number of 
water sources signifi cantly 
affected by withdrawal by type

— Environmental Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Using energy 
resources and using 
water resources

G4-EN10 Report the total volume of water 
recycled and reused by the 
organization

— Environmental Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Using energy 
resources and using 
water resources

BIODIVERSITY
G4-EN11 Report the following information 

for each operational site owned, 
leased, managed in, or adjacent 
to, protected areas and areas of 
high biodiversity value outside 
protected areas

— Environmental Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Greenhouse gas 
emissions and 
polluting emissions 
into the atmosphere

G4-EN12 Description of signifi cant 
impacts of activities, products, 
and services on biodiversity in 
protected areas and areas of 
high biodiversity value outside 
protected areas

— Environmental Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Greenhouse gas 
emissions and 
polluting emissions 
into the atmosphere

G4-EN13 Habitats protected or restored — Environmental Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Greenhouse gas 
emissions and 
polluting emissions 
into the atmosphere
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INFORMATION
G4-EN14 Report the total number of red 

lights list species and national 
conservation list species with 
habitats in areas affected by the 
operations of the organization, 
by level of extinction risk

— Environmental Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Greenhouse gas 
emissions and 
polluting emissions 
into the atmosphere

EMISSIONS
G4-EN15 Direct greenhouse gas (ghg) 

emissions
● 72_73 Environmental Company policies, 

results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Greenhouse gas 
emissions and 
polluting emissions 
into the atmosphere

G4-EN16 Energy indirect greenhouse gas 
(ghg) emissions

● 72_73 Environmental Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Greenhouse gas 
emissions and 
polluting emissions 
into the atmosphere

G4-EN17 Other indirect greenhouse gas 
(ghg) emissions (none)

— Environmental Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Greenhouse gas 
emissions and 
polluting emissions 
into the atmosphere

G4-EN18 Report the gHg emissions 
intensity ratio

— Environmental Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Greenhouse gas 
emissions and 
polluting emissions 
into the atmosphere

G4-EN19 Reduction of greenhouse gas 
(ghg) emissions

● 72_73 Environmental Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Greenhouse gas 
emissions and 
polluting emissions 
into the atmosphere

G4-EN20 Emissions of ozone-depleting  
substances (ods)

— Environmental Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Greenhouse gas 
emissions and 
polluting emissions 
into the atmosphere

G4-EN21 NoX, SoX, and other signifi cant 
air emissions (none)

— Environmental Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Greenhouse gas 
emissions and 
polluting emissions 
into the atmosphere

EFFLUENTS AND WASTE
G4-EN22 Type of water discharge by 

quality and destination
— Environmental Company policies, 

results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Impact on m / l term 
on environment, 
health and safety 
associated with risk 
factors

G4-EN23 Waste by type and disposal 
method

○ 72 Environmental Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Impact on m / l term 
on environment, 
health and safety 
associated with risk 
factors

G4-EN24 Report the total number 
and total volume of recorded 
signifi cant spills

— Environmental Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Impact on m / l term 
on environment, 
health and safety 
associated with risk 
factors

G4-EN25 Weight of transported, 
imported, exported, or treated 
waste deemed hazardous 
under the terms of the basel 
convention annex i, ii, iii, and viii, 
and percentage of transported 
waste shipped internationally

○ 72 Environmental Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Impact on m / l term 
on environment, 
health and safety 
associated with risk 
factors
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INFORMATION
G4-EN26 Report water bodies and related 

habitats that are signifi cantly 
affected by water discharges based 
on the criteria described in the 
Compilation section below, adding 
information on: size of water body 
and related habitat, whether the 
water body and related habitat is 
designated as a protected area  
(nationally or internationally), 
biodiversity value (such as total 
number of protected species)

— Environmental Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Impact on m / l term 
on environment, 
health and safety 
associated with risk 
factors

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES
G4-EN27 Report quantitatively the extent 

to which environmental impacts  
of products and services have 
been mitigated during the 
reporting period

● 70_73  
Environmental

Major risks 
from business 
activities, products 
/ services, supply 
chains

Impact on m / l term 
on environment, 
health and safety 
associated with risk 
factors

G4-EN28 Report the percentage of 
reclaimed products and their 
packaging materials for each 
product category (none)

—  
Environmental

Major risks 
from business 
activities, products 
/ services, supply 
chains

Impact on m / l term 
on environment, 
health and safety 
associated with risk 
factors

COMPLIANCE
G4-EN29 Monetary value of signifi cant 

fi nes and total number of non- 
monetary sanctions for non-
compliance with environmental 
laws and regulations

— - Major risks 
from business 
activities, products 
/ services, supply 
chains

TRANSPORT
G4-EN30 Signifi cant environmental 

impacts of transporting 
products and other goods and 
materials for the organization’s 
operations, and transporting 
members of the workforce

○ 70_73 Environmental Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Impact on m / l term 
on environment, 
health and safety 
associated with risk 
factors

OVERALL
G4-EN31 Environmental protection 

expenditures and investments 
by type

● 72 Environmental Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

-

SUPPLIER ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT
G4-EN32 Report the percentage of new 

suppliers that were screened 
using environmental criteria

○ 64 Environmental Major risks 
from business 
activities, products 
/ services, supply 
chains

G4-EN33 Report the number of suppliers 
subject to environmental impact 
assessments

○ 64 Environmental Major risks 
from business 
activities, products 
/ services, supply 
chains

Impact on m / l term 
on environment, 
health and safety 
associated with risk 
factors

ENVIROMENTAL GRIEVANCE MECHANISMS
G4-EN34 Report the total number of 

grievances about environmental 
impacts fi led through formal 
grievance mechanisms during 
the reporting period

○ 62 Environmental Major risks 
from business 
activities, products 
/ services, supply 
chains

-
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EMPLOYMENT
G4-LA1 Report the total number and 

rate of new employee hires 
during the reporting period, by 
age group, gender and  region

● Staff Related Business model of 
management and 
organization

Social aspects 
related to personnel 
management, gender 
equality, international 
conventions, dialogue 
with social partners

G4-LA2 Report the benefi ts which 
are standard for full-time 
employees of the organization 
but are not provided to 
temporary or part-time 
employees, by signifi cant 
locations of operation

— Staff Related Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Social aspects 
related to personnel 
management, 
gender equality, 
international 
conventions, dialogue 
with social partners

G4-LA3 Return to work and retention 
rates after parental leave, by   
gender

— Staff Related Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Social aspects 
related to personnel 
management, gender 
equality, international 
conventions, dialogue 
with social partners

LABOUR/MANAGEMENT RELATIONS
G4-LA4 Report the minimum number of 

weeks’ notice typically provided 
to employees and their elected 
representatives prior to the 
implementation of signifi cant 
operational changes that could 
substantially affect them

— Social Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Social aspects 
related to personnel 
management, 
gender equality, 
international 
conventions, dialogue 
with social partners

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY
G4-LA5 Report the level at which each 

formal joint management-
worker health and safety 
committee typically operates 
within the organization (none)

— Staff Related Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Impact on m / l term 
on environment, 
health and safety 
associated with risk 
factors

G4-LA6 Type of injury and rates of injury, 
occupational diseases, lost days, 
and absenteeism, and total 
number of work-related fatalities, 
by region and by gender

● 59 Staff Related Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Impact on m / l term 
on environment, 
health and safety 
associated with risk 
factors

G4-LA7 Report whether there are 
workers who are involved in 
occupational activities who have 
a high incidence or high risk of 
specifi c diseases

● 59 Staff Related Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Impact on m / l term 
on environment, 
health and safety 
associated with risk 
factors

G4-LA8 Report whether formal 
agreements (either local or 
global) with trade unions cover 
health and safety (none)

— Staff Related Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Impact on m / l term 
on environment, 
health and safety 
associated with risk 
factors

TRAINING AND EDUCATION
G4-LA9 Average hours of training per 

year per employee by gender, 
and by employee category

○ 53 Staff Related Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Social aspects 
related to personnel 
management, gender 
equality, international 
conventions, dialogue 
with social partners 
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GRI 
CODE INDICATOR Lev PG TOPICS ENVIRONMENT REPORT 

INFORMATION
G4-LA10 Report on the type and scope 

of programs implemented and 
assistance provided to upgrade 
employee skills

○ 53 Staff Related Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Social aspects 
related to personnel 
management, gender 
equality, international 
conventions, dialogue 
with social partners 

G4-LA11 Report the percentage of total 
employees by gender and by 
employee category who received 
a regular performance and 
career development review 
during the reporting period

— Staff Related Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Social aspects 
related to personnel 
management, gender 
equality, international 
conventions, dialogue 
with social partners 

DIVERSITY AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY
G4-LA12 Composition of governance 

bodies and breakdown of 
employees per employee 
category according to gender, 
age group, minority group 
membership, and other 
indicators of  diversity

○ 52_54 Staff Related Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Social aspects 
related to personnel 
management, 
gender equality, 
international 
conventions, dialogue 
with social partners

EQUAL REMUNERATION FOR WOMEN AND MEN
G4-LA13 Report the ratio of the basic 

salary and remuneration 
of women to men for each 
employee category, by 
signifi cant locations of 
operation

— Staff Related Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Social aspects 
related to personnel 
management, gender 
equality, international 
conventions, dialogue 
with social partners

SUPPLIER ASSESMENT FOR LABOUR PRACTICES
G4-LA14 Report the percentage of new 

suppliers that were screened 
using labor practices criteria

○ 64 Social and 
Human Rights

Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Social aspects 
related to personnel 
management, gender 
equality, international 
conventions, dialogue 
with social partners

G4-LA15 Signifi cant actual and potential 
negative impacts for labor 
practices in the supply chain and 
actions taken

— Social and 
Human Rights

Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Social aspects 
related to personnel 
management, gender 
equality, international 
conventions, dialogue 
with social partners

LABOUR PRACTICES FOR GRIEVANCE MECHANISIMS
G4-LA16 Report the total number 

of grievances about labor 
practices fi led through formal 
grievance mechanisms during 
the reporting period (none)

— Staff Related Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Social aspects 
related to personnel 
management, gender 
equality, international 
conventions, dialogue 
with social partners

INVESTIMENT
G4-HR1 Report the total number and 

percentage of signifi cant 
investment agreements and 
contracts that include human 
rights clauses or that underwent 
human rights screening (aspects 
already covered by the Italian 
legislation)

— Human Rights Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Respect for human 
rights, measures 
taken to prevent 
violations, actions 
taken to prevent 
discriminatory 
attitudes or actions
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GRI 
CODE INDICATOR Lev PG TOPICS ENVIRONMENT REPORT 

INFORMATION
G4-HR2 Report the total number of 

hours in the reporting period 
devoted to training on human 
rights policies or procedures 
concerning aspects of human 
rights that are relevant to 
operations (aspects already 
covered by the Italian 
legislation)

— Staff Related Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Social aspects 
related to personnel 
management, 
gender equality, 
international 
conventions, dialogue 
with social partners

NON-DISCRIMINATION
G4-HR3 Report the total number of 

incidents of discrimination 
during the reporting period 
(aspects already covered by the 
Italian legislation)

— Human Rights Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Respect for human 
rights, measures 
taken to prevent 
violations, actions 
taken to prevent 
discriminatory 
attitudes or actions

FREEDOM OF ASSOCIATION AND COLLECTIVE BARGAINING
G4-HR4 Operations and suppliers 

identifi ed in which the right to 
exercise freedom of association 
and collective bargaining may 
be violated or at signifi cant 
risk, and measures taken to 
support these rights (aspects 
already covered by the Italian 
legislation)

— Human Rights Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Respect for human 
rights, measures 
taken to prevent 
violations, actions 
taken to prevent 
discriminatory 
attitudes or actions

CHILD LABOUR
G4-HR5 Operations and suppliers 

identifi ed as having signifi cant 
risk for incidents of child 
labor, and measures taken 
to contribute to the effective 
abolition of child labor (aspects 
already covered by the Italian 
legislation)

— Human Rights Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Respect for human 
rights, measures 
taken to prevent 
violations, actions 
taken to prevent 
discriminatory 
attitudes or actions

FORCED OR COMPULSORY LABOUR
G4-HR6 Operations and suppliers 

identifi ed as having signifi cant 
risk for incidents of forced 
or compulsory labor, and 
measures to contribute to 
the elimination of all forms 
of forced or compulsory labor 
(aspects already covered by the 
Italian legislation)

— Human Rights Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Respect for human 
rights, measures 
taken to prevent 
violations, actions 
taken to prevent 
discriminatory 
attitudes or actions

SECURITY PRACTICES
G4-HR7 Report the percentage of 

security personnel who have 
received formal training in the 
organization’s human rights 
policies or specifi c procedures 
and their application to security 
(aspects already covered by the 
Italian legislation)

— Human Rights Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Respect for human 
rights, measures 
taken to prevent 
violations, actions 
taken to prevent 
discriminatory 
attitudes or actions
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GRI 
CODE INDICATOR Lev PG TOPICS ENVIRONMENT REPORT 

INFORMATION

INDIGENOUS RIGHTS
G4-HR8 Report the total number of 

identifi ed incidents of violations 
involving the rights of indigenous 
peoples during the reporting 
period (aspects already covered 
by the Italian legislation)

— Human Rights Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Respect for human 
rights, measures taken 
to prevent violations, 
actions taken to 
prevent discriminatory 
attitudes or actions

ASSESSMENT
G4-HR9 Report the total number and 

percentage of operations that 
have been subject to human 
rights reviews or human rights 
impact assessments, by country 
(aspects already covered by the 
Italian legislation)

— Human Rights Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Respect for human 
rights, measures 
taken to prevent 
violations, actions 
taken to prevent 
discriminatory 
attitudes or actions

SUPPLIER HUMAN RIGHTS ASSESSMENT
G4-HR10 Report the percentage of new 

suppliers that were screened 
using human rights criteria 
(aspects already covered by the 
Italian legislation)

— Human Rights Major risks 
from business 
activities, products 
/ services, supply 
chains

Respect for human 
rights, measures taken 
to prevent violations, 
actions taken to 
prevent discriminatory 
attitudes or actions

G4-HR11 Signifi cant actual and potential 
negative human rights impacts 
in the supply chain and actions 
taken (aspects already covered 
by the Italian legislation)

— Human Rights Major risks 
from business 
activities, products 
/ services, supply 
chains

Respect for human 
rights, measures taken 
to prevent violations, 
actions taken to 
prevent discriminatory 
attitudes or actions

HUMAN RIGHTS GRIEVANCE MECHANISMS
G4-HR12 Report the total number of 

grievances about human rights 
impacts fi led through formal 
grievance mechanisms during 
the reporting period (aspects 
already covered by the Italian 
legislation)

— Human Rights Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Respect for human 
rights, measures 
taken to prevent 
violations, actions 
taken to prevent 
discriminatory 
attitudes or actions

LOCAL COMMUNITIES
G4-SO1 Report the percentage of 

operations with implemented 
local community engagement, 
impact assessments, and 
development programs

● 66_68 Social Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Social aspects 
related to personnel 
management, gender 
equality, international 
conventions, dialogue 
with social partners

G4-SO2 Operations with signifi cant 
actual and potential negative 
impacts on local communities

● 66_68 Social Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Social aspects 
related to personnel 
management, gender 
equality, international 
conventions, dialogue 
with social partners

ANTI- CORRUPTION
G4-SO3 Number and percentage of 

operations assessed for risks 
related to corruption and the 
signifi cant risks identifi ed

— Anti- 
Corruption

Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

The fi ght against 
corruption is both 
active and passive 
and dialogue with 
social partners
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GRI 
CODE INDICATOR Lev PG TOPICS ENVIRONMENT REPORT 

INFORMATION
G4-SO4 Report the total number and 

percentage of governance 
body members that the 
organization’s anticorruption 
policies and procedures have 
been communicated to, broken 
down by region (none)

— Anti- 
Corruption

Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

The fi ght against 
corruption is both 
active and passive 
and dialogue with 
social partners

G4-SO5 Report the total number and 
nature of confi rmed incidents of 
corruption (none)

— Anti- 
Corruption

Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

The fi ght against 
corruption is both 
active and passive 
and dialogue with 
social partners

PUBLIC POLICY
G4-SO6 Report the total monetary value 

of fi nancial and in-kind political 
contributions made directly and 
indirectly by the organization 
by country and recipient/
benefi ciary (none)

Anti- 
Corruption

Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

The fi ght against 
corruption is both 
active and passive 
and dialogue with 
social partners

ANTI-COMPETITIVE  BEHAVIOUR
G4-SO7 Report the total number of legal 

actions pending or completed 
during the reporting period 
regarding anticompetitive 
behavior and violations of anti-
trust and monopoly legislation in 
which the organization has been 
identifi ed as a participant  (none)

— - Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

-

COMPLIANCE
G4-SO8 Monetary value of signifi cant 

fi nes and total number  of
non-monetary sanctions for 
non-compliance with laws and 
regulations

● 70 - Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

The fi ght against 
corruption is both 
active and passive 
and dialogue with 
social partners

SUPPLIER ASSESMENT FOR IMPACT ON SOCIETY
G4-SO9 Report the percentage of new 

suppliers that were screened 
using criteria for impacts on 
society

— Social  Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Impact also at m / l 
term on health and 
safety associated 
with risk factors

G4-SO10 Signifi cant actual and potential 
negative impacts on society in 
the supply chain and actions  
taken

— Social Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Impact also at m / l 
term on health and 
safety associated 
with risk factors

GRIEVANCE MECHANISMS FOR IMPACTS ON SOCIETY
G4-SO11 Report the number of suppliers 

subject to assessments for 
impacts on society

— Social Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

CUSTOMER HEALTH AND SAFETY 
G4-PR1 Report the percentage of 

signifi cant product and service 
categories for which health and 
safety impacts are assessed for 
improvement

— Social  Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Impact also at m / l 
term on health and 
safety associated 
with risk factors
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GRI 
CODE INDICATOR Lev PG TOPICS ENVIRONMENT REPORT 

INFORMATION
G4-PR2 Report the total number of 

incidents of non-compliance with 
regulations and voluntary codes 
concerning the health and safety 
impacts of products and services 
within the reporting period

— Social  Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Impact also at m / l 
term on health and 
safety associated 
with risk factors

PRODUCT SERVICE AND LABELING
G4-PR3 Service information required by 

the organization’s procedures for 
product and service information 
and labeling, and percentage of 
signifi cant product and service 
categories subject to such 
information requirements

— Social  Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Impact also at m / l 
term on health and 
safety associated 
with risk factors

G4-PR4 Number of incidents of non-
compliance with regulations 
and voluntary codes concerning 
product and service  information 
and labeling, by type of 
outcomes

— Social  Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Impact also at m / l 
term on health and 
safety associated 
with risk factors

G4-PR5 Results of surveys measuring 
customer satisfaction

— Social  Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Impact also at m / l 
term on health and 
safety associated 
with risk factors

MARKETING AND COMMUNICATIONS
G4-PR6 Results of surveys measuring 

customer satisfaction (none)
— Social  Company policies, 

results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Impact also at m / l 
term on health and 
safety associated 
with risk factors

G4-PR7 Number of incidents of non-
compliance with regulations 
and voluntary codes concerning 
marketing communications, 
including advertising, 
promotion, and sponsorship, by 
type of outcomes (none)

— Social  Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Impact also at m / l 
term on health and 
safety associated 
with risk factors

CUSTOMER PRIVACY
G4-PR8 Number of substantiated 

complaints regarding breaches 
of customer privacy and losses 
of customer   data

● 62 Social  Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Impact also at m / l 
term on health and 
safety associated 
with risk factors

COMPLIANCE
G4-PR9 Report the total monetary 

value of signifi cant fi nes for 
non- compliance with laws and 
regulations concerning the 
provision and use of products 
and services

● 62 Social  Company policies, 
results achieved, 
non-fi nancial 
indicators

Impact also at m / l 
term on health and 
safety associated 
with risk factors
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